
 

Wormwood Scrubs 
Charitable Trust Committee 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 29 January 2020 
7.00 pm 

 
Kathy Dolan Centre, 78 White City Close, W12 7DZ 

 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration 

Councillor Wesley Harcourt (Chair) 
Councillor Alexandra Sanderson 
Councillor Belinda Donovan 
 

Co-optees 

Miriam Shea 
Stephan Waley-Cohen 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CLERK:  

Clerk: Amrita Gill 
 : 020 8753 2094 
 E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk 
 
The agenda is available on the Council’s website: 
www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. 
 

                                                                                      Date Issued: Updated 24 January 
2020 

http://www.lbhf.gov.uk/committees


Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 
Agenda - 29 January 2020 

 
Item  Pages 

1.   MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  4 - 9 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26 June 2019. 
 

 

2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a member has a disclosable or significant interest in any item on the 
agenda, they should declare it here.  
 
A member with a significant interest in an item should withdraw from the 
meeting before the matter is discussed and any vote is taken. 
 

 

4.   WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST STATEMENT OF 
ACCOUNTS 2018/19  

10 - 39 

 This report presents the Trust’s Annual Trustee’s Report which includes 
the draft 2018/19 financial accounts. 
 

 

5.   MANAGER'S REPORT  40 - 52 

 The Committee is asked to note all matters in this report. 
 

 

6.   REGENERATION MANAGER UPDATE AND APPOINTMENT OF 
CONSULTANTS FOR STADIUM FEASIBILITY  

53 - 54 

 This report provides an update on the business case process and next 
steps for the appointment of consultants for the stadium feasibility. 
 
 

 

7.   PRESENTATION BY THE AEM CONSULTANTS   

 A presentation will be provided to the Trust by AEM Consultants.  
 

 

8.   FUNDING TOWARDS KENSINGTON DRAGONS DEVELOPMENT  55 - 67 

 The report summarises the options and possible next steps available to 
the Trust in relation to the proposals outlined by Kensington Dragons 
Football Club (KDFC) to provide improved grass pitches adjacent to 
Linford Christie Stadium (LCS) as well a new hybrid pitch next to Linford 
Christie Stadium (LCS). 
 

 

 



______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

Wormwood Scrubs
Charitable Trust Committee

Minutes
Wednesday 26 June 2019

PRESENT

Committee members: Councillors Wesley Harcourt (Chair), Alexandra Sanderson and 
Belinda Donovan

Advisors to the Trust
David Burns, Mahmood Siddiqi, Richard Gill, Ian Ross, and David Abbott (Clerk)

3 members of the public also attended the meeting.

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

RESOLVED

1. Councillor Wesley Harcourt was unanimously agreed as Chair of the 
Committee for the municipal year 2019-20.

2. Councillor Alexandra Sanderson was unanimously agreed as Vice Chair of 
the Committee for the municipal year 2019-20.

2. APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTED MEMBERS

RESOLVED
Sir Stephen Waley-Cohen and Miriam Shea, representatives of the Friends of 
Wormwood Scrubs, were unanimously agreed as co-opted members of the 
Committee for the municipal year 2019-20.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

Grounds Maintenance - Members asked that it be clarified that the Committee 
should consider options in the interest of the Scrubs, rather than options in the 
interest of the Council. Stephen Waley-Cohen felt that the current cross-borough 
contract wasn’t providing value for money and recommended a sovereign contract 
in future. The Chair asked for the re-procurement of the contract to be on the 
Committee’s next agenda.

ACTION: Mahmood Siddiqi
RESOLVED
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a correct record.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for lateness were received from Councillor Belinda Donovan (who 
entered the meeting at 7.06pm).

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

6. MANAGER'S REPORT

Mahmood Siddiqi, Advisor to the Trust, presented the report.

External Auditors
Mahmood Siddiqi noted that the report requested the Committee’s approval of the 
appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as the Trust’s external audit for the accounting 
year 2018/19, subject to final approval by the Chair upon receipt of an acceptable 
quote. The Committee agreed the recommendation.

Linford Christie Stadium
The Chair asked why the majority of wash basins were still out of action. Councillor 
Belinda Donovan said it was a health and safety issue and needed resolving 
ASAP. Mahmood Siddiqi said it was down to the Council’s property services team. 
A report had been drafted and was going through the Council’s decision-making 
process. The Chair asked for a written update to be circulated to the Committee.

ACTION: David Burns
Benches
Stephen Waley-Cohen noted that a bench had been removed from Chestnut Walk 
because it was unsafe, but it hadn’t been replaced.

OPDC Local Plan
Richard Gill noted that he had met with the Friends of Wormwood Trust to discuss 
the OPDC local plan approach. The planning inspector took on board the Trust’s 
concerns about access points. Each access point and its impact had to be 
considered individually.

David Burns noted that the planning inspector had set aside three dates for Car 
Giant’s evidence to the GLA and he would circulate dates to committee.

ACTION: David Burns
Kensington Dragons Football Club
Richard Gill reported that he had met with Kensington Dragons and resolved all 
outstanding issues (or put plans in place to resolve them). The Council would need 
to provide funding to take the proposals forward.

Chris Shirley, of Kensington Dragons, said they had an initial cost plan but needed 
an investigation into the condition of the grounds. They also need a specification 
which the Dragons were happy to fund. The budget for the works were estimated 

Page 4



______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

at £1.6m of which a portion would be provided by the Council due to an 
arrangement to maintain the surfacing.

So as not to hold up the process any longer than necessary, the Committee 
agreed to delegate the decision to grant a lease or license to the Council’s 
Assistant Director for Growth (David Burns) in consultation with the Chair of the 
Committee, Councillor Wesley Harcourt.

Miriam Shea asked advisors to circulate a one-page summary of the Linford 
Christie lease to the Committee.

ACTION: David Burns
Stamford Brook Sewer
Stephen Waley-Cohen noted that when works commenced in Spring of last year 
there was a large area cordoned-off for safety reasons. Advisors said they 
expected full safety fencing for the works in Spring 2020. The Committee 
requested clear notices were put up at the time.

Community Safety
The Chair asked for a breakdown of the incidents in the report to be circulated to 
the Committee.

ACTION: Mahmood Siddiqi
Dog Walkers
Stephen Waley-Cohen noted the Committee had previously discussed requiring 
professional dog walkers to obtain a license. He asked for a short report on how 
the Royal Parks handled the issue and how something similar could be put into 
place on the Scrubs.

Medical Research Council building project
Advisors noted that the Council was recommending approval of the application at 
the next planning committee meeting. The Committee agreed to delegate the 
negotiation of the final terms and granting of the license to the Council’s Assistant 
Director for Growth (David Burns) in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, Councillor 
Wesley Harcourt.

Kensington Aldridge Academy
David Burns advised that the DfE had asked for a further 3 years planning 
permission. Advisors were recommending a 12-month licence with a review at the 
end of the period.

The committee asked why the recommendation was for just 12-months. Advisors 
said it was to protect the Trust. The MoD asked for the recommendation in case 
they had any need for the land within three years.

The Committee agreed to delegate to H&F officers to negotiate the final terms and 
to ensure the appropriate legal agreements were in place as outlined in the report.

Financial Outturn 2017/19
Mahmood Siddiqi noted there would be a surplus this year of £232,000. The 
Committee asked why parking income had increased - was it due to the new 
cashless payment system? Mahmood said cashless payments had increased 
revenue across the borough. The Chair asked if the figure included the money 
from TfL for rapid charge points. Mahmood said he would follow this up after the 
meeting.

Page 5



______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

ACTION: Mahmood Siddiqi
Financial Forecast for 2019-20
Mahmood Siddiqi reported that the Trust was anticipating a surplus of £13,000 - 
but that excluded the income from Kensington Aldridge Academy and other 
payments that hadn’t been confirmed at the time of the report being written. The 
Committee asked for an update on these figures at the next meeting.

A member of the public felt the accounts didn’t reflect the true picture as they didn’t 
include the subsidy from the Council of around £250,000 per year. He had 
produced consolidated accounts and asked if they could circulate them to the 
Committee. David Burns said a report could be brought to a future meeting on this.

RESOLVED
1. The Committee approved the appointment of Grant Thornton LLP as the 

Trust’s external auditors for the accounting year 2018/19, subject to final 
approval by the Committee Chair upon receipt of an acceptable quote.

2. The Committee agreed to delegate the decision to grant a lease or license 
for Kensington Dragon’s Football Club to the Council’s Assistant Director for 
Growth, David Burns, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, 
Councillor Wesley Harcourt.

3. Medical Research Council building project - the Committee agreed to 
delegate the negotiation of the final terms and granting of the license to the 
Council’s Assistant Director for Growth, David Burns, in consultation with the 
Chair of the Committee, Councillor Wesley Harcourt.

4. Kensington Aldridge Academy - The Committee agreed to delegate to H&F 
officers to negotiate the final terms and to ensure the appropriate legal 
agreements were in place as outlined in the report.

7. LINFORD CHRISTIE OUTDOOR SPORTS STADIUM - OUTCOME OF THE 
PUBLIC CONSULTATION

David Burns, Advisor to the Trust, presented the report that summarised the 
outcome of the public consultation on the options available to the Trust for the 
future of Linford Christie Outdoor Sports Stadium. He noted an error in 4.10 of the 
report – there were actually 16 responses. Officers were seeking consent from 
respondents before publishing their submissions.

The Chair asked if the same Council officers had written the report to the Trust and 
the Council’s Executive. David Burns said there was a clear separation of advice 
and different officers had written each report, though they were based on the same 
information.

Members had concerns that the report seemed to suggest option three was the 
preferred option. Advisors said the options appraisal would look at all three options 
again in more detail. Each option’s costs and benefits would be assessed before 
making a recommendation.

David Burns made clear that the consultant would be advising the Trust, at the 
Council's expense, if the Council agrees to the funding. The advice would be 
independent of the Council.

Page 6



______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

The Committee asked for more analysis of the consultation – including the impact 
of QPR supporters, how many people were represented by the group submissions, 
and the potential impact of including non-H&F adjacent areas like W10.
 
The Chair asked what arrangements were in place at the Council to separate the 
work being done by advisors to the Trust and other officers. David Burns said 
beyond this report Council officers were not doing any further work. It would be 
taken forward by independent consultants.

The committee felt the terms of reference for the consultant were key and asked to 
agree the terms before any appointments were made.

The Chair asked if there was a legal duty on the Trust to carry out a London-wide 
consultation. David Burns said he anticipated that there would have to be a wider 
consultation on any recommendations that came out of the business case review.

RESOLVED

That, subject to final approval of the specification, Wormwood Scrubs Charitable 
Trust Committee:

1. Notes the results of the public consultation.

2. Approves the Procurement Strategy in Appendix 2 of the report for the 
appointment of multidisciplinary advisors for the Trust, to consider the 
consultation responses in more detail, to develop a business case, and to 
complete any necessary surveys, technical and planning work that may be 
required.

3. Delegates the award of contracts for multi-disciplinary advisors as set out in 
the Procurement Strategy in Appendix 2 of the report to the Council's 
Assistant Director of Growth acting on behalf of the Trust in consultation 
with the Chair of the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee subject 
to the Council's agreement to provide sufficient funding to the Trust.

4. Delegates authority to the Council's Assistant Director of Growth acting on 
behalf of the Trust to develop an outline business case for the different 
options, on the basis that regular updates and reports are provided to the 
Trust Committee.

5. Notes the requirements in relation to conflict of interests and decision-
making procedures set out in this report.

6. Delegates authority to the Council's Assistant Director of Growth acting on 
behalf of the Trust to consult with the Charity Commission in relation to the 
Trust’s decision making process in connection with the future of the Stadium 
and for ongoing dialogue with the Charity Commission and to provide a 
report to the Trust following the discussions with the Charity Commission.

Note: The Committee requested an additional meeting to be held to agree the final 
specification of the advisors (recommendation 2).

ACTION: David Burns

Page 7



______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Minutes are subject to confirmation at the next meeting as a correct record of the proceedings and any amendments arising will be 
recorded in the minutes of that subsequent meeting.

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED
Members of the public or press were excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business, on the grounds that they contain 
the likely disclosure of confidential information.

Two members of the public left the meeting.

9. LINFORD CHRISTIE OUTDOOR SPORTS STADIUM - CONFIDENTIAL 
ELEMENTS

NOTE: The following discussion took place under an exempt item but the minutes 
of the item are not exempt

David Burns presented the exempt procurement strategy noting that it set out what 
was needed at a high level, the options for procurement, and recommendations on 
next steps.

The Chair asked how the Trust could ensure its goals were recognised in this 
process. David Burns said the specification had to be created and he could share 
all relevant documentation with the Committee. The Committee said they would 
approve the recommendations subject to final approval of the specification.

Members made the following points on the specification:
 The brief needed to be to look at all options - and variations of those 

options.
 There should be proper analysis of the environmental impact of each option, 

and detail of the legal obstacles to overcome for each option.
 It would be helpful for someone to do an analysis of the potential conflicts of 

interest of the Local Authority in its role as planning authority and sole 
Trustee.

 Attention should be drawn to the risks of the cancellation of HS2 by the 
Government, and the failure of OPDC to implement its proposals.

AOB

The Chair, on behalf of the whole Committee, thanked Mahmood Siddiqi and Ian 
Ross for the work they have done for the Trust over many years. He wished them 
well in their future endeavours.

Meeting started: 7.00 pm
Meeting ended: 8.45 pm

Chair

Clerk: Amrita Gill
E-mail: amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk

Page 8

mailto:amrita.gill@lbhf.gov.uk


 

WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST ANNUAL REPORT 
AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19  

 
29th January 2020 

 

Report to Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 
 

Report Author: 
Carmen Lomotey 

Contact Details: 
carmen.lomotey@lbhf.gov.uk  
 

 
 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1. This report presents the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Annual 
Trustee’s Report which includes the draft 2018/19 financial accounts 
(Appendix A). 
 

1.2. The external auditors (Grant Thornton UK LLP) must report their findings 
to a properly constituted governance body of the Trust before they can 
publish their signed and final opinion on the integrity of the Trust’s 
accounts (Appendix B – to follow). 

 
1.3. The external auditors (Grant Thornton UK LLP) require the Trust to 

approve a letter of representation (Appendix C – to follow).  
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. To approve the Trustee’s Annual Report, attached as Appendix A. 
 

2.2. To approve the 2018/19 financial accounts for Wormwood Scrubs 
Charitable Trust (“the Trust”), incorporated as part of the Annual Report 
(Appendix A).  

 
2.3. To approve the management representation letter (attached as Appendix 

C – to follow). 
 

2.4. To note the contents of the annual risk assessment (contained in the 
Trustee’s report on page 25). 

 
 

 
3. REASONS FOR DECISION 

3.1. The external auditors must report their findings to a properly constituted 
governance body of the Trust before they can publish their signed and 
final opinion on the integrity of the Trust’s accounts.   

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



4. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

4.1. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by 
Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 
102) issued on 16 July 2014 and the Charities Act 2011. The Statement of 
Accounts and Trustee’s Report are provided from page 15 of Appendix A. 
These are for approval by the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 
Committee. 
 

4.2. This report gives a brief overview of the key points arising from the 
Statement of Accounts and Trustee’s Report. 
 

4.3. Grant Thornton UK LLP have been appointed as the auditors of the 
financial statements for 2018/19. 

 
4.4. Grant Thornton are nearing completion of the 2018/19 Wormwood Scrubs 

Charitable Trust and will present their findings to Committee. It should be 
noted that these accounts remain “unaudited” until final sign off by Grant 
Thornton and may, therefore, be subject to change until that point. Grant 
Thornton will consider and complete their final sign-off following the 
approval of the accounts by the Trust. 
 

 
5. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 

5.1. This was the Trust’s second surplus in recent years; with the Trust 
achieving net incoming resources of £226,945. While the revenue 
performance for the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust in 2018/19 was 
£71,018 lower than the previous year, the 2018/19 budget was set with an 
anticipated £19,354 surplus.  The out-turn therefore represents an 
improvement on the budgeted position of £207,591. 
 

5.2. The Trust started the year with an opening balance of £5,515,244. With an 
in-year surplus of £226,945, the year-end balance was £5,742,189.  
 

5.3. The amount carried forward consists of unrestricted income funds of 
£742,188 and restricted funds relating to the valuation of land and 
buildings of £5,000,001. 
 

5.4. The Trust’s land includes the Linford Christie Athletics Stadium, Pony 
Centre, three-bedroom cottage and single storey parks depot, all of which 
are valued as £1 in total. It also includes the car park valued at £5,000,000 
as at 31st March 2018. 
 

5.5. Under normal operating conditions, the main source of income (86%) is 
achieved through the use of the car parks that append Wormwood Scrubs. 
For 2018/19, this income consists of public pay and display parking 
income (351,834; 35% of income) and private car park rental income from 

Page 10



the licence to Hammersmith Hospital Trust (337,229; 33%); 68% in total. 
The Trust’s 2018/19 total incoming resources was £1,060,142. Exceptional 
income resulting from the Kensington Aldridge Academy’s occupation of 
the Scrubs (£314,264; 30% ) has continued.   
 

5.6. The main source of resources expended are payments in respect of 
grounds maintenance. Including apportioned governance costs, these 
totalled 86% (£719,895) of the £833,197 total resources expended in 
2018/19.  
 

5.7. Further details on the financial performance of all these elements can be 
found within the Statement of Accounts and Trustee’s report.  

 
6. AUDITOR’S REPORT 

6.1. The auditor asks the Committee and management for written 
representations about the financial statements and governance 
arrangements. To that end Members are asked to consider and approve 
the draft letter of representation attached as Appendix C (to follow). 
 

6.2. Grant Thornton’s findings and final opinion on the 2018/19 financial 
statements will be issued once the letter of representation has been 
approved however a draft assessment will be presented to Committee. 
 
 

7. REVIEW OF BALANCES 

7.1. The Trust’s balances have increased in recent years, mainly due to 
stability in pay and display parking income and the occupation of the 
Kensington Aldrige Academy (KAA). The Trust continues to closely 
monitor and scrutinise its income and expenditure due totemporary nature 
of KAA’s occupation and the increased grounds maintenance costs 
resulting from annual contract inflation. Council officers are focussing on 
reducing the net costs of the Trust in the short, medium and long term.  
 

 
8. RISK MANAGEMENT 

8.1. As part of the Trustee’s risk management strategy, the Trustee completes 
an annual review of the risks the charity may face. The 2018/19 risk 
assessment is contained in the Trustee’s report on page 25. 
 

8.2. The work has identified a number of risks and the situation is being 
monitored.  A key element in the management of risk is managing income 
and expenditure and setting a reserves policy for regular review by the 
Trustee.  The review of reserves is set out in section 7 above. 

 
 
 
 

Page 11



9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. Grant Thornton UK LLP are required to report the findings from their audit 
to a properly constituted governance body of the Trust before their opinion 
on the accounts is issued. 

 
10. FINANCIAL AND RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

10.1. The financial elements are detailed in the main report. 
 

11. CONSULTATION 

11.1. Not applicable. 
 

12. EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 

12.1. Not applicable. 
 

13. PROCUREMENT AND IT STRATEGY IMPLICATIONS 
 

13.1. Not applicable. 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of 
holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. Charities SORP (FRS 102) 

Charities Act 2011 

 

Stephen 
Hollingworth 
07823 534 934  

Clockworks 

 
LIST OF APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix A –  WSCT Annual Trustee’s Report and draft Statement of 

Accounts 2018/19 
 
Appendix B – Draft Audit Findings 2018/19 (to follow) 
 
Appendix C –  WSCT Letter of Representation 2018/19 (to follow) 
 
Appendix D – WSCT Risk Assessment Schedule  

Page 12



1 
 

 

 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust  

Trustees Report 2018/19 

Page 13



2 
 

Overview of the Year 

The Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (The Trust) exists to ensure that this much valued 
area of open space in West London is used for the exercise and recreation of Londoners.  In 
its local plan, the Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation describes the Scrubs as 
‘… a cherished public open space and important ecological asset …’ .  

The last year saw some very significant developments for the Trust: 

• The Trust reports a financial surplus, of £232,060 as it continues to benefit from 
increased rental income, albeit not all of this is expected to recur in future years. 

• We continue to help in the aftermath of the Grenfell Tower fire by providing the site for 
temporary buildings for the Kensington Aldridge Academy school. 

• We engaged consultants to develop the plans for improved biodiversity using the £3.9m 
of funding agreed with High Speed Two. 

• The Trust ensured the development of Old Oak and Park Royal does not impact 
adversely on the Scrubs by engaging in the development of the local plan. 

 
• We continued to work closely with the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs through the two 

Friends who are co-opted members of the governing committee. 
 
An Oasis of Green Space in West London 

Wormwood Scrubs is an open space located in the north-eastern corner of the London 
Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham in west London. It is the largest open space in the 
Borough, at 80 ha (200 acres), and is one of the largest areas of common land in London.  It 
has been a public open space since the Wormwood Scrubs Act of 1879.   

Wormwood Scrubs includes a Local Nature Reserve and there are also areas designated as 
Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation. These areas include Braybrook Woods, Martin 
Bell's Wood and the Central Woodland Copse.  

Habitats include woodland (plantation), scrub and grassland.  Animals include common 
lizards, approximately 100 species of bird and 20 species of butterfly.  There are also 
approximately 250 native plant species which make up one sixth of UK native flora. 

Structure, Governance and Management  

Responsibility for the management of the Trust rests with the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable 
Trust Committee of the London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham.  This consists of three 
Councillors and two co-opted members, advised by senior council officers. The Committee is 
charged with managing all the affairs of the Trust, improving the focus and performance of the 
Trust and ensuring it achieves its charitable objectives. The Committee members for 2018/19 
were Councillors Wesley Harcourt, Alexandra Sanderson and Belinda Donovan.   

The two non-voting co-opted members were Miriam Shea and Sir Stephen Waley-Cohen.  
Both are also members of the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs.   

The London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham (LBHF or ‘The Council’) is the sole 
corporate trustee for the Trust.   

Page 14



3 
 

Day to day running of the Trust is undertaken by officers in line with the Committee’s scheme 
of delegation. The de facto chief executive of the Trust is Kim Dero, the Council’s chief 
executive.  Mahmood Siddiqi, Bi-borough director for transport and Highways, was the main 
officer responsible for the day to day running of the Trust in 2018/19. 

Hitesh Jolapara, the Council’s director of finance and governance is the Trust’s chief finance 
officer but day to day financial management of the Trust is undertaken by Christina Cato, lead 
head of finance. 

As set out in the Council’s constitution, the Council's Standards Committee provides advice 
and training for Councillors.  Under the constitution, Councillors are required to accept a 
personal responsibility to take up such opportunities for training and development that may be 
provided by the Council in order better to carry out their duties as effective members 

Objectives and Activities  

Wormwood Scrubs is the subject of a charitable trust created by the Wormwood Scrubs Act 
1879.  The Council of the London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham is the sole corporate 
trustee and holds the land in trust for the “use by the inhabitants of the metropolis for exercise 
and recreation”.  This is the Trust’s sole objective. 

The Trust therefore seeks to encourage sporting and recreational use of Wormwood Scrubs 
through the provision and maintenance of an environment that is conducive to its objective.  
The Trust is not linked with the prison located nearby.  

The Linford Christie stadium is sited on Wormwood Scrubs and was built by the Greater 
London Council when that body was responsible for the Scrubs. The stadium is operated by 
the Council and the Trust makes an annual contribution to its running costs. 

In addition to supporting the recreational activities provided by the Council through the Linford 
Christie stadium, the Trust’s main activity relates to the maintenance of the Scrubs itself. Since 
6th May 2008 idverde UK (which acquired Quadron Services Ltd in 2016) has provided a 
grounds maintenance service at Wormwood Scrubs following a procurement exercise run by 
the Council. 

The Trustee has paid due regard to the Charity Commission's public benefit guidance in 
preparing its annual report.  The Trust delivers public benefit in meeting its charitable 
objective of holding the land in trust in accordance with the 1879 Act. 

Working with the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs  

The Trust continues to work closely with the Friends of Wormwood Scrubs on a regular basis 
and two members of the friends are co-opted onto the charitable trust as non-voting 
members.  Regular contact has been maintained with the friends throughout the year and the 
Trust and those involved in the day-to-day management of the site welcome their updates in 
terms of things seen but also works required. 
 
The Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager worked with the Friends to submit comments 
on the local plan to the local planning authority, the Old Oak and Park Royal Development 
Corporation (OPDC). This was a good opportunity for both parties to discuss issues and the 
proposals together. 

 

Page 15



4 
 

 

 

  

High Speed 2 (HS2) 

HS2 Bill – Environmental Improvement Works 
  
The Agreement between HS2 and LBHF dated 20th October 2016 secured £3.9m for 
alternative ecological mitigation (AEM) works. These works were agreed as an alternative to 
the ecological mitigation within the HS2 Bill and form an appendix to the agreement. 
 
Land use Consultants were appointed as design consultants for the AEM works on 3rd June 
2019 and have been working to develop the proposals through a design board involving the 
Council, HS2 and the OPDC. A conservation management plan, consultation strategy and 
preliminary masterplan have been produced for discussion. 
 
Pick Everard were appointed as cost consultants for the project on 10th June 2019. This 
appointment will give greater cost certainty to the proposals as they develop. 
  
HS2 Bill – Stamford Brook Sewer Realignment 
  
The planned re-route of the Stamford Brook sewer through the northern section of 
Wormwood Scrubs will involve digging a trench, disturbing ecology and temporarily cutting 
off sections of the Scrubs for public use.  
  
HS2 have been exploring alternative options to re-route the sewer but do not yet have a 
solution. If an alternative is not found a legal agreement is in place to provide method 
statements to protect the ecological habitats in the process. 
  
The works for the re-route of the sewer are currently planned for the summer of 2020 once 
the final proposals have been agreed. 
  
Old Oak and Park Royal Development Corporation (OPDC)  
 
The OPDC came into existence with full planning powers over the Old Oak and Park Royal 
regeneration area (including most of Wormwood Scrubs but excluding the Linford Christie 
stadium) on 1 April 2015.   
 
OPDC Draft Local Plan  
The draft Plan contains their land use and spatial strategy over the next 15-20 years and 
contains policies on housing, community facilities, transport, the environment, and more. 
These policies will guide future development, and proposals for development will be 
assessed against the policies contained within the OPDC’s Local Plan.  The Trust will play a 
full part in responding to any consultations and formulation of the OPDC’s Local Plan.   
  
The Draft Local Plan can be viewed here: www.london.gov.uk/opdclocalplan  
 
OPDC Draft Local Plan – 2nd Round of Regulation 19 Consultation, 2018  
  

Page 16

http://www.london.gov.uk/opdclocalplan


5 
 

The OPDC carried out 2 rounds of Regulation 19 public consultation on their Draft Local Plan. 
The first round of consultation was carried out in June to September 2017. The WSCT made 
representations which were considered by the OPDC in reviewing and redrafting their draft 
Local Plan.  
 
The OPDC then carried out a further 2nd Regulation 19 consultation which ran from 14 June 
to 30 July. Both WSCT and Friends of Wormwood Scrubs (FOWS) have submitted 
representations and these will be carefully considered by the OPDC in finalising their Local 
Plan for submission to the Secretary of State for independent Examination in Public (EIP).  
    
Local Plan Timetable   
  
The Proposed Submission Local Plan must be considered by a formal Independent Examination. 
This is led by an independent Planning Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for the Ministry 
of Housing, Communities and Local Government. In 2019, OPDC’s Local Plan underwent its 
examination hearings. The examination will continue during 2020 and following the conclusion of 
the examination, the Local Plan will be considered by OPDC’s board for adoption. 
  
For more information about the process and what the Planning Inspector assesses and how 
please go to link  https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-oak-and-park-
royal-development-corporation-opdc/get-involved-opdc/opdc-local-plan/submission-and-
examination/local-plan-examination-process  
  
  
Habitat and Ecology  
 
Phase 1 Biodiversity Surveys completed in 2016 and 2017 formed the basis of 
recommendations for the AEM (Alternative Ecological Mitigation) proposals. These proposals 
were reaffirmed with HS2 as; removal of Japanese knotweed to create new habitat, woodland 
management, scrapes and wet woodland, hedge planting, heathland planting and grassland 
enriched with wildflowers. Further surveys were completed in September to gain a fuller 
understanding of the scrubs biodiversity. 
  
The AEM proposals will include both a conservation management plan (CMP), to understand 
the value and use of the Scrubs and a 10-year management and maintenance plan to 
maximise habitat improvement for wildlife as well as regular surveys to demonstrate 
improvements to biodiversity. The AEM proposals will not be able to tackle all the issues at 
the scrubs as the HS2 funding is limited to ecological improvements. Nevertheless, both the 
CMP and the management and maintenance plan will identify options to address issues with 
other funding mechanisms. 
  
The proposals for the northern boundary are likely to be the most complex due to the range 
of habitats and the influence of the Japanese knotweed growing here. This needs to be 
removed before any other planting can be successful and, as its removal takes at least three 
years, works to control it have already commenced. A watching brief by an experienced 
ecologist was undertaken in all stages of the works to ensure that nesting birds were not 
disturbed.  
  
Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) 
 
This school occupies a new building located very close to Grenfell Tower in North Kensington.  
In the aftermath of the tower fire in June 2017 it was apparent that the school could not operate 
from that site when the new academic year was due to start in September 2017.  It identified 

Page 17

https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-oak-and-park-royal-development-corporation-opdc/get-involved-opdc/opdc-local-plan/submission-and-examination/local-plan-examination-process
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-oak-and-park-royal-development-corporation-opdc/get-involved-opdc/opdc-local-plan/submission-and-examination/local-plan-examination-process
https://www.london.gov.uk/about-us/organisations-we-work/old-oak-and-park-royal-development-corporation-opdc/get-involved-opdc/opdc-local-plan/submission-and-examination/local-plan-examination-process


6 
 

the old gravelled military training area in the Scrubs (sometimes known as the ‘Redgra’) as a 
suitable site for temporary school buildings and set about seeking the permission of the Trust, 
the planning authority and the Ministry of Defence to use the site. 
 
Temporary structures were installed over the summer of 2017 and the school was ready for 
occupation in September. 
 
The School occupied the site for the whole academic year 2017/18 and paid the Trust a 
suitable market rent.  The Trust was not able to earn the income that it would normally have 
done by renting out the gravel area for the usual very short term uses, such as lorry parking 
for trade shows at Olympia. 
 
It is anticipated that the school will remain on the Scrubs until 12 August 2021 and return to its 
permanent site from September 2021.   
 
Achievements and Performance 
 
Sport 
 
Currently, the Linford Christie Outdoor Sports Centre (LCOSC) and Wormwood Scrubs itself 
boasts eight full size football pitches, three junior nine-a-side pitches, two junior seven-a-side 
pitches and two junior five-a-side pitches. In addition, there are two Gaelic football pitches, 
seasonal baseball pitches and a football pitch in the central area of the athletics track which is 
the home pitch of the Kensington Dragons Football Club senior team. The facility also offers 
fully certified athletics track and five all weather pitches.   
 
The facility is the home of Thames Valley Harriers Athletics Club and PHC Chiswick Hockey 
Club. 
 
A number of other sports activities take place on Wormwood Scrubs.  These include, 
  

• Tackle Africa Football Tournament 
• London Junior Baseball League 
• Race for Life event 
• British Athletic League Meetings 
• Weekend 5K Park runs 
• Extensive school usage including district sports day 

 
There have been ongoing issues at LCOSC with the water supply, which has taken far long 
than expected to remedy. This has affected some activities that take place there. 
 
Events 
 
A number of sporting events including; Tackle Africa, Race for life and Pretty Muddy were held 
on the scrubs without incident and enjoyed by all participants. 
 
Due to the relocation of the Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) onto the Redgra following 
the Grenfell tragedy, the area has not been available for the previously regular film shoots or 
event/Met Police Carnival parking. Although KAA is moving back to its building in September, 
the temporary school will remain in situ for at least a further year, in case any issues arise due 
to Grenfell. 
 

Page 18



7 
 

The Trust remains interested in facilitating a small number of larger events and discussions 
continue with companies that specialise in organising these.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Grounds Maintenance and Site Management 
 
The Scrubs is a highly popular site attracting a diverse range of users from dog walkers to 
model aircraft flyers to ornithologists to those wanting a quiet walk. The appearance and 
cleansing of both the grounds and the stadium is very important. Numerous tasks are thus 
undertaken on a routine and reactive basis to ensure the grounds maintenance of the site is 
kept at an acceptable standard. 
 
Officers and the contractor, idverde UK, have worked hard over the last year to increase the 
number of volunteers, including from companies seeking to fulfil their corporate social 
responsibilities.  These groups have assisted with the maintenance of the Scrubs but also 
undertaken tasks that would not have been possible otherwise. 
 
The Trust is pleased that schools have also been using the site to self-deliver the Forest 
Schools education programme (www.forestschoolassociation.org). 
 
In the past twelve months the following tasks have been scheduled as part of the grounds 
maintenance contract:  
 

Page 19

http://www.forestschoolassociation.org/


8 
 

Activity 
Inspecting daily three on-site play areas 

Maintaining three on-site play areas 

Strimming across the site and Linford Christie Stadium 

Grass cutting all non-pitch areas across the site 

Grass cutting areas of Linford Christie Stadium 

Maintaining all wildlife and copse perimeters 

Maintaining and pruning of all shrub bed areas 

Pruning and maintenance of all hedges 

Low level tree works 

Maintaining dog areas 

Litter picking across the site 

Litter picking within the Linford Christie Stadium 

Emptying of litter bins 
Emptying of dog bins 
Cleansing hard surfaces across the site 

Treating of Japanese Knotweed 

Cleansing hard surfaces within the Linford Christie Stadium 

Cleansing and sweeping synthetic pitch areas within Linford Christie Stadium 

Maintenance of the Redgra area 

Leaf clearance across the site 

Attending to fly tips 

Attending to vandalised or damaged equipment, facilities or surfaces 

Liaising with site and facility users 

Liaising with Parks Constabulary 

Assisting in the preparation for large events 

Assisting with Groundwork/Volunteer initiatives 
 
 
 
 
Community Safety  
  
Wormwood Scrubs continues to be patrolled by the Borough’s uniformed Parks Police Service 
by using vehicles and pedal cycles, and on foot.  They dealt with 797 Incidents in 2019.  No 
major crimes were reported, and most incidents involved anti-social behaviour, such as badly-
behaved dogs and their owners, homeless encampments and thefts from unattended motor 
vehicles.   
 
The number of dogs being walked by professional dog walkers appears to have increased and 
a number of fixed penalty tickets were issued for having dogs in excess of the permitted total 
of four dogs.  The Royal Parks now charge £300 per annum for licensing professional dog 
walkers, which may account for the increased numbers on the Scrubs. A proposal to introduce 
licences for professional dogwalkers is being introduced in this year's Council fees and 
charges. 
 
One traveller incursion took place and was dealt with through a Section 77 notice enforced by 
Parks officers with Parks Police support.  
 
 
Financial Review  

Page 20



9 
 

 
The Trust reported a surplus of £226,945 in 2018/19. The main reason for this large surplus 
is the new income received from the Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) for the operation of 
the school. This significant peak is short term/one-off. However, a surplus is expected again 
in 2019/20, with a smaller surplus in 2020/21, as the current KAA licence expires in July 2020 
and KAA, who is negotiating a Licence extension to July 2021,  is expected to return to its 
permanent site in September 2021.  
 

 
 
Other than the mentioned temporary KAA income peak, the main income sources are pay and 
display income from the four machines in Wormwood Scrubs Car Park, Cashless parking 
income and licence income for the use of the car park. Some income was also achieved from 
the Park Lodge and UKPN.  
 
The Trust contributes to the Linford Christie athletic stadium, and other sports facilities located 
on the Trust grounds, to promote the objectives of the Trust: to support exercise and 
recreation.  The Linford Christie Stadium cannot operate without a subsidy, and the Council 
makes a significant contribution to that.  From 2014/15 a commitment was made to the Trust 
that everything would be done to limit the contribution by the Trust, and that was successfully 
limited to £31,500 in 2016/17, very close to the figure contributed in the previous year. 
The contribution stated in the Income and Expenditure Statement is higher at £32,356 because 
the Trust is required to spread council recharges across a number of expenditure headings, 
rather than accounting for them on a single line, which was the previous practice. 
 
Expenditure incurred by the Trust is in line with the objectives of the Trust. 
 
In total funds brought forward, the Trust has restricted funds of £5,000,001 relating to the 
valuation of the car park and tangible fixed assets in their existing use.  The remaining, 
unrestricted income funds are solely used for the specific purposes of the Trust.  These total 
£742,188 as at 31 March 2019 (see the Statement of Accounts note 11).  They significantly 
increased since 2017/18 compared to the previous years, because of the 2018/2019 net 
incoming resources.   
 
No capital projects were undertaken in 2018/2019. 
 
Plans for future periods 
 
In approving the budget for 2018/19 the Committee predicted a conservative surplus of 
£19,354. However, this was before the extension of the agreement to provide a temporary 
home for the Kensington Aldridge Academy school (KAA), which has brought a significant 
rental income to the Trust in in 2018/19. Due to a recent licence extension to July 2020, and 
current negotiations to extend to July 2020/21, this income will also have significant impact on 
2019/20 accounts, and some impact on 2020/21 accounts.  Further the lump sum credited to 

2018/19 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Total Incoming Resources 1,060,142 1,072,295 698,745 678,572 717,972 638,525 546,201
Total Resources  Expended -833,197 -774,332 -736,084 -737,772 -724,506 -717,576 -717,853
Net outgoing (-)/Incoming resources 226,945 297,963 -37,339 -59,199 -6,534 -79,051 -171,652

Total funds brought forward 5,515,244 5,217,280 5,254,619 5,313,818 5,320,353 5,399,404 5,571,056
Total funds carried forward 5,742,189 5,515,244 5,217,280 5,254,619 5,313,818 5,320,353 5,399,404

Unrestricted funds 742,188 515,243 217,279 254,618 313,817 320,352 399,403

Summary of Financial Position

Page 21



10 
 

the 2017/18 accounts following the Trust’s discussions with UK Power Networks about 
achieving a fair annual rent for a piece of Trust land that has been used by UKPN for many 
years, a formal lease is in place and annual income is being is being received. 
 
A Conservation Management Plan and Community Engagement Strategy are soon to be 
presented to the Trust for approval and the Committee is determined to bring the financial 
performance of the Trust to breakeven or better in the absence of exceptional income; but 
expects this to take more than a year to achieve. The Trust is keen to ensure that development 
around the site do not threaten its integrity.  
 
The Trust can demonstrate recent surplus outturns and is seeking ways to ensure a steady 
progress towards being able to operate at a breakeven position or better with normal activities.  
To create this secure financial position in the longer term the Trust is working on optimising 
the use of its assets by developing events on the Scrubs once KAA finally vacate and getting 
the best possible benefits from the development of High Speed 2.  The Trust is optimistic of 
such income as approaches have already been made, e.g. to organisers, including: 
• To Secret Cinema to build a temporary set on the Scrubs in 2021 and put on performances 

over the summer for a 4-week period. The capacity for each show would be approximately 
4.000 people.  

• To small music festival organisers, attracting audiences of approximately 5,000, to consider 
the Scrubs as a suitable site in the summer of 2020 and future years. Should interest be forth 
coming, consultation will again be conducted with residents and key stakeholders before 
agreement and terms reached. 

 
Consultation with residents and key stakeholders will commence before final agreement and 
terms are reached.  
 
Grounds Maintenance (GM) is the Trust main expenditure. (GM) Contract expires in April 
2021. We have started the procurement process to agree a new GM contract. The first stage 
was to approach the market to explore what options are available.  
 
The current proposal being drafted to cabinet is to: 
 

• Extend the existing contract until 1st February 2022 in order to design a new specification 
and carry out the procurement process. 

 

• Obtain a price and specification for Wormwood Scrubs that can be part of, or separate from 
the overall contract, depending on the advantages offered by the Contractor in terms of 
economies of scale. 

 

• The AEM Works will be developing a Biodiversity management plan for the scrubs which will 
form part of the specification. This is different from traditional grounds maintenance, but 
many contractors offer an appropriate countryside type service. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reserves and Treasury Management Policy 
 
The Trust’s reserves policy is to consider the level of its balances annually, taking into account; 
 

• Whether the Trust has approved a balanced budget 
• The robustness of the assumptions and calculations that have underpinned the budget 

strategy 

Page 22



11 
 

• The frequency and effectiveness of in year budget monitoring 
• The effectiveness of Risk Management 
• The affordability of its commitments in respect of grounds maintenance and support of 

the Linford Christie Stadium 
• The review of, and the opinion on, the Trust’s financial statements by the External 

Auditor 
• The condition of the Trust’s assets 
• The affordability considerations of prudential borrowing 

 
Currently, the Fund’s undesignated funds of £742,189 exceed the average annual turnover of 
the Trust prior to the exceptional income, which is considered prudent given the factors 
identified above.  Despite achieving some improvements, the Trust recognises that balancing 
its income and expenditure remains a challenge.  The Committee established by the Council 
to run the Trust has a key role in improving financial performance.    

Determining an adequate level of balance requires professional judgement in the context of 
assessing performance against the key criteria listed above. Consequently, it is considered 
inappropriate to stipulate either a minimum or a maximum level of balances held. It is 
considered more important that the key criteria are reviewed annually at the time of preparing 
the annual Revenue Budget and reviewing the previous year’s performance. 
 
Pay and display parking income in 2018/19 has increased by £70,223 compared to 2017/18 
and is forecasted to be stable in 2019/20. However, increased grounds maintenance costs 
due to annual contract inflation and contributions to the running costs for the Linford Christie 
Stadium remain as pressures. The Trust continues to closely monitor and scrutinise its income 
and expenditure. Council officers are focussing on reducing the net expenditure of the Trust 
in the short, medium and long term. Increased income is being targeted through initiatives to 
optimise use of the scrubland.  
 
The Trust’s cash balances are managed by the Council. The Council’s Treasury Management 
Strategy Report governing the investment policy adopted, was adopted by the Council in 
February 2016.  The Committee report can be found on the Council’s website at the following 
location: 
 
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s74149/TMS%20LBHF%202016-
17%20Cabinet%20210116%20Final.pdf  
 
 
Risk Management    

The Trustee has a risk management strategy which comprises: 

• An annual review of the risks the charity may face; 
• Establishment of plans to mitigate those risks identified; 
• Implementation of steps designed to minimise any potential impact on the charity 

should those risks materialise. 

The work has identified only a few risks and the situation is being monitored. A key element in 
the management of risk is managing income and expenditure and setting a reserves policy 
with regular review by the Committee.  The full schedule of risks can be found later in this 
report (Appendix C – Page 25). 

  

Page 23

http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s74149/TMS%20LBHF%202016-17%20Cabinet%20210116%20Final.pdf
http://democracy.lbhf.gov.uk/documents/s74149/TMS%20LBHF%202016-17%20Cabinet%20210116%20Final.pdf


12 
 

Statement of Trustee’s Responsibilities in respect of the Trustee’s Annual Report and 
the financial statements   
 
The charity trustee is responsible for preparing a trustees’ annual report and financial statements in 
accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practice).  
 
The law applicable to charities in England and Wales requires the charity trustee to prepare financial 
statements for each year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charity and of the 
incoming resources and application of resources, of the charity for that period. In preparing the 
financial statements, the trustee is required to:  
 
• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently; 
 • observe the methods and principles in the applicable Charities SORP;  
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;  
• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material 

departures that must be disclosed and explained in the financial statements; 
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to 

presume that the charity will continue in business.  
 

The trustee is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable 
accuracy at any time the financial position of the charity and to enable them to ensure that the financial 
statements comply with the Charities Act 2011, the applicable Charities (Accounts and Reports) 
Regulations, and the provisions of the Trust deed. It also responsible for safeguarding the assets of 
the charity and taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities.  
 
The trustee is responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the charity and financial information 
included on the charity’s website in accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom governing the 
preparation and dissemination of financial statements. 

Disclosure of Information to Auditors 

The Trustee who held office at the date of approval of this Trustee’s Report confirms that, so far 
as it is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charity’s auditor is unaware; and 
the Trustee has taken all steps that ought to have been taken as a trustee to make itself aware of 
any relevant audit information and to establish that the charity’s auditor is aware of that information. 

Auditors 

The Trustee appointed Grant Thornton UK LLP during the year to undertake the audit of accounts 
in this year and in the following year.  The Independent auditor’s report to the Trustee of 
Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust follows on page 13. 

For and on Behalf of Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 

Signed  
 
 
 
Name: Cllr Wesley Harcourt          Date:  

Page 24



13 
 

Independent auditor’s report to the Trustees of Wormwood Scrubs Charity (Appendix B) 
 
Audit opinion to follow 
 

     

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

  

    
  

Page 25



14 
 

Appendix C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK 
 
 

    

 

 
 
 
 
 
  

  

  

Page 26



15 
 

    
     
    

 
  

 
WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19 

 
  

  

    
    
    
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 27



16 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for Year ended 31 March 2019

Income and Expenditure 2018/19 2017/18
Notes £ £

Income and endowments from:

2 Income from Charitable activities:
     Pay and Display Parking Meters (351,834) (259,674)
     Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (337,229) (324,619)

3 Other trading activities (367,332) (485,376)
4 Income from Investments (3,747) (2,626)

Total Income and endowments (1,060,142) (1,072,295)

Expenditure on:

5, 8 Charitable activities:
     Costs of generating Parking Income -              -              

6      Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 32,356 32,330
     Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 25,593 3,267

7      Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 719,895 706,909

Other expenditure 55,353 31,826

Total Expenditure 833,197 774,331

Net (income)/expenditure (226,945) (297,964)

Reconciliation of Funds

Total funds brought forward (5,515,244) (5,217,280)

Total funds carried forward (5,742,189) (5,515,244)

All income was unrestricted all activities are continuing.

WORMWOOD SCRUBS CHARITABLE TRUST

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19

Page 28



17 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

Balance Sheet at 31 March 2019

2018/19 2017/18
£ £

Fixed Assets

9 Tangible Assets 5,000,001 5,000,001

Total Fixed Assets 5,000,001 5,000,001

Add: Current Assets
Cash in Bank 703,769 251,781

10 Debtors 83,579 273,361

Total Current Assets 787,348 525,143

Less: Liabilities

10 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year (45,160) (9,900)

Total Liabilities (45,160) (9,900)

Total Net Assets and Liabilities 5,742,189 5,515,244

£ £
11 The funds of the charity:

Unrestricted income funds (742,188) (515,243)
Revaluation reserve (5,000,001) (5,000,001)

Total Charity Funds (5,742,189) (5,515,244)

Approved by the trustees on 29th January 2020 and signed on their behalf by: 

Cllr. Wesley Harcourt
Chair, Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee

Page 29



18 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for Year ended 31 March 2019

2018/19 2017/18

£ £
Cash flows from operating activities:

12 Net cash provided by operating activities 448,241 13,798

Cash flows from investing activities:

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 3,747 2,626

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment -              -              

Purchase of property, plant and equipment -              -              

Proceeds from sale of investments -              -              

Purchase of investments -              -              

Net cash provided by investing activities 3,747 2,626

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayments of borrowing -              -              

Cash inflows from new borrowing -              -              

Receipt of endowment -              -              

Net cash provided by financing activities -              -              

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period 451,988 16,425

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 251,781 235,356

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 703,769 251,781

Page 30



19 
 

 

 

Notes to the Accounts
(1) Statement of Accounting Policies

(i) Accounting Concept

(ii) Depreciation

(iii)  Fixed Assets

(2) Incoming Resources

The accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis. That is, on the basis of income being due and expenditure being payable in the
related financial year.

The Trustee has a reasonable expectation that the charity has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. They therefore continue to accept the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Depreciation has not been charged to tangible fixed assets (the land or the car park). Any changes in value will be reported as gains or
losses on revaluations.  The Trustee is not aware of any indication that an impairment has occurred.

The Trust has ownership of land, passed under the Wormwood Scrubs Act 1879 for the perpetual use of the inhabitants of London for
exercise and recreation. Due to the restrictions on the use of the land and its disposal, it is included in the balance sheet at a fair value at
the point of donation, as there are no records of this value a nominal value of £1 is used. This is in line with FRS102. The car park is held
at historic value. This was initially established by a valuation in 2004, though the Trust does not operate a policy of revaluation. 

The accounts (financial statements) have been prepared under the historical cost convention with items recognised at cost or transaction
value unless otherwise stated in the relevant note(s) to these accounts. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting and Reporting by Charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) issued on 16 July 2014 and the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the Charities Act 2011.

The trust constitutes a public benefit entity as defined by FRS 102.

In preparing the accounts, the trustees have considered whether in applying the accounting policies required by FRS 102 and the
Charities SORP FRS 102 a restatement of comparative items was needed. No restatements were required relating to the previous year’s
accounts, however the necessary changes in terms of presentation and disclosures have been made to bring the report in line with new
SORP requirements including the addition of the Statement of Cash Flows and the allocation of governance costs across activities. The
functional currency is £ sterling.

All income is recognised once the charity has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount of
income receivable can be measured reliably. Material income for the Trust includes Pay and Display parking fees and filming income,
that would be recoginsed this way.

The Trust has a licensing agreement with Hammersmith Hospital NHS Trust (HHT), for the use of a limited number of parking spaces
within the car park, making use of surplus capacity. The Trustee's consider that the arrangement is consistent with the Trust's objectives,
as the arrangement can be terminated at any time.

Page 31



20 
 

 

 

(3) Income from Other Trading Activities

2018/19 2017/18

£ £

Filming income 0 (65,897)

Value of costs recharged to outside bodies (52,490) (29,970)

Other rental income* (314,842) (389,509)
(367,332) (485,376)

(4) Investment Income

(5) Charitable activities

(6) Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium

(7) Grounds Maintenance

The Council's Audit Committee formally approved the continuation of the service provided by the Environmental Services Department in
June 2009. 

On 27 November 2006 a yearly contribution of up to £110,000 to the running costs of the stadium was approved by Cabinet as an
ongoing commitment. In 2018/19 a contribution of £31,500  (£31,500 in 2017/18) was made to the Linford Christie Stadium.

The grounds maintenance work undertaken at Wormwood Scrubs is undertaken by the Council's external contractor under a Grounds
Maintenance contract that was tendered in 2008 for a period of 7 years. The award of this contract was considered in the best interest of
both the Council and the Trust. Until 2001/02 the Trust was not in a position to fund the entire cost of the works and until this point, the
Council only received a contribution. Since this time, the Trust has funded the full cost of grounds maintenance costs at Wormwood
Scrubs. Grounds Maintenance services are currently provided by the Environmental Services Department of the Council. The
continuation of these services are periodically approved by Cabinet Members. This Contract has been extended until March 2021.

Routine Grounds Maintenance is undertaken in accordance with a series of schedules that form part of the new contract. The fixed
element of the contract has increased from £688,761 in 2017/18 to £699,995 in 2018/19 due to a 3.00% inflationary uplift in line with the
terms of the contract. The specification included in the new Grounds Maintenance contract represents a significant enhancement to the
level of grounds maintenance that currently takes place at Wormwood Scrubs.

Non-routine Grounds Maintenance is identified and commissioned on behalf of the Trust by the contractor. 

Interest is calculated on an average cash position for the year and is included in the accounts at year end. The interest rate used is the 7
day LIBOR rate, which increased from 0.42% in 2017/18 to 0.72% in 2018/19.

*Other rental income includes rental for a piece of land in previous years where the terms of the agreement and rental were finalised and 
signed in March 2018. Consequently recognised the receipt in advance for £23,659.00

Resources expended on charitable activities comprise all the resources applied by the charity in undertaking its work to meet its
charitable objectives. The Trust's objectives and work are detailed in the Trustees' Annual Report. Support Costs are wholly and
exclusively represented by "Governance Costs" which are set out in Note 8. 

The Charity contributes to the up-keep of an athletic stadium located on the Trust grounds, not as a cost apportionment exercise but in
furtherance of the objectives of the Trust to support recreation. Linford Christie Stadium is managed by the Environmental Services
Department.

Page 32



21 
 

 
 

(8) Governance costs

The resources expended that relate to the governance of the charity consist of the following: 2018/19 2017/18
£ £

Financial Administration and Support fees -  these costs result from the statutory requirement to prepare 
accounts. Also included are the costs of the time spent liaising and meeting with auditors, and attending 
closing of account meetings.  

2,902 8,961

Legal Fees - In the management of the Trust during the year legal advice was required.  This was provided 
by Legal Services of LBHF and the charges were based on a staff time basis. 3,481 201

Audit Fees - It is a statutory requirement that the accounts of the trust should be independently audited. 15,015 9,900
21,398 19,062

Allocation of the Governance costs:

Activity 2018/19 2017/18
£ £

     Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 856 830
     Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 642 84
     Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 19,900 18,148

21,398 19,062

(9) Tangible Assets

(10) Debtors & Creditors

Creditors
2018/19 2017/18

£ £
Trade creditors (30,145) 0
Accruals and deferred income (15,015) (9,900)

(45,160) (9,900)

Debtors
2018/19 2017/18

£ £
Trade debtors 83,579 273,361
Prepayments and accrued income -              -              

83,579 273,361

The Governance costs associated with the charity are allocated to each of the Charitable Activities (as per FRS102), as a percentage of 
the gross expenditure.

The Trust's Land and Buildings include an Athletics Stadium, Pony Centre, three bedroom cottage and single storey parks depot, all of
which are valued as a nominal £1 due to the restrictions placed on the use of the land and its disposal.

The Athletics Stadium was built in 1961 under the Greater London Council (GLC) and prior to the creation of the London Borough of
Hammersmith and Fulham, who are now responsible for administering the Trust. There is no available documentation to demonstrate
that approval has been gained by the Secretary of State for Defence.

The Pony Centre was given approval to be built by the Secretary of State for Defence.

The car park is classified as a functional tangible fixed asset as the use of this land is considered as consistent with the charities
objectives.
The Trust does not depreciate its assets as they are all either without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. land) or of a nominal value (i.e.
£1)

Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant
amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where the exact amount of a debtor or creditor was not known at the time of closing the
accounts then an estimated amount has been used.

The car park is included in the accounts at historic cost in line with FRS102. The value included is £5,000,000. To establish a proxy for
historic cost the asset was valued on the 31st March 2004.  The Trust does not operate a policy of revaluation.

Page 33



22 
 

 

 
 
 

(11) Fund Structure: 

The Trust's Unrestricted Funds comprise:

2018/19 2017/18
£ £

General (742,188) (515,243)

Designated - Fixed Asset Revaluation (5,000,001) (5,000,001)

(5,742,189) (5,515,244)

(12) Net Cash Flow from operating Activities
2018/19 2017/18

£ £
Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial activities) 226,945 297,964

Adjustments for:
Dividends, interest and rents from investments (3,747) (2,626)
Loss/(profit) on the sale of fixed assets 
(Increase)/decrease in debtors 189,782 (273,361)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 35,260 (8,178)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 448,241 13,798

(13) Related Party Transactions:

2018/19 2017/18
a) London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham as transacting party £ £
- LBHF as contractor to the Trust
Environmental Services Department for the provision of Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood 
Scrubs (Ref Note 7) 699,995 688,761

- LBHF as recipient of contribution

Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium (Ref Note 6) 31,500 31,500

- LBHF as provider of administrational and management support to the Trust
Environmental Services Department for management & financial administration services of Wormwood 
Scrubs 2,902 8,961

Legal Services for the provision of legal advice required in the management of Wormwood Scrubs 3,481 201
737,878       729,423       

Amounts due to or from related parties: -              -              

All Income and Expenditure are Unrestricted funds solely used for the specific purpose of the Trust. Expenditure which meets this criteria
is charged to the fund, together with a fair allocation of management and support costs, as recharged by LBHF.

The Trustees have designated funds relating to the valuation of the car park and tangible fixed assets in their existing use.

The Council of London Borough of Hammersmith and Fulham (LBHF) is the trustee of the charity. Most expenditure transactions of the
Trust are with LBHF and therefore fall under the definition of related party transactions. However, as stated this does not conflict with
the charity's ability to meet its objectives. There are no staff employed by the charity.

Page 34



23 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  

(14) Trustee Remuneration, Benefits and Expenses

(15) External Audit Costs

2018/19 2017/18
£ £

Fees payable to the External Auditor with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed 
auditor for the year 15,015 9,900

15,015 9,900

16) Post Balance Sheet Events

The Trust has had no material adjusting or non-adjusting events after the balance sheet date of 31 March
2019.

The Trust has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts and statutory inspections provided by the 
Trust's external auditors:

The Charities SORP (FRS 102) requires all trustee (or people connected with the charity) remuneration, benefits and expenses to be
disclosed, regardless of size. There has been no remuneration, other benefit or expense payments to trustees, or people connected with
the charity.

Page 35



24 
 

Reference and Administrative details  

Charity Name and Number Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust,  
Registration No. 1033705 

Charity Correspondent Emily Hill 
Deputy Director for Finance 
Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 
c/o Old Oak Community Centre 
76 Braybrook St 
London  
W12 0AP 

Trustees The Council of the London Borough of 
Hammersmith & Fulham 

Telephone 020 8753 6700 

Email Address emily.hill@wormwoodscrubstrust.org.uk 

Governing Document Wormwood Scrubs Act 1879  
As Amended By Scheme Of The 
Charity Commissioners Dated 25 
March 2002. 

Objects For recreational use as set out in the 
Wormwood Scrubs Act 1879 

Area of Benefit Wormwood Scrubs and West London.  
(Area prescribed by Governing 
Document)  

Area of Operation Greater London – Hammersmith and 
Fulham  

Registration History 23 Feb 1994 Registered 

Auditor Details  
Grant Thornton UK LLP, 
110 Bishopsgate 
London  
EC2N 4AY 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36

http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#Correspondent
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#TelFax
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#EmailWEB
mailto:emily.hill@wormwoodscrubstrust.org.uk
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#GovDoc
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#Objects
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#AreaOfBenifit
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#AreaOfOperation
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp#History
http://www.charity-commission.gov.uk/registeredcharities/first.asp


25 
 

 

Page 37



26 
 

Appendix D 

Risk Assessment Schedule 2018/19 - WSCT 

Risk 
Index 
No. 

AREA OF RISK IMPACT OF RISK SEVERITY 
High/Medium/ 
Low 

POTENTIAL 
High/medium/Lo
w 

VALUATION COMMENT 

001 High Speed 2 
Railway and the 
development of 
Old Oak 

Adverse impacts on the Scrubs that 
are contrary to the objectives of the 
Trust 

High Medium May not be a 
financial loss 

Trust is engaging with HS2 and TFL and 
the Old Oak development Corporation to 
agree outcomes that do not adversely 
impact. 

002 Pay and Display 
income level 

Lower income levels due to decisions 
taken about Pay and Display tariffs. 
 

Medium Medium Potential loss of 
income. 
 
 

Usage fluctuates.  Pay & display tariffs 
are set to match those in nearby streets.  
The introduction of cashless parking has 
significantly reduced the theft risk.   

003 Hammersmith 
Hospital Trust 
car park income 

The licensing agreement with 
Hammersmith Hospital Trust has a 
three month notice period with a 
possible impact on the level of 
income. 

High Medium Potential loss of 
income. 

The Hospital relies on the car park.  The 
Trust has been successful in securing 
increased income from this source in 
recent years.   

004 Condition – 
Wormwood 
Scrubs car park 

Wormwood Scrubs car park is in need 
of resurfacing.  
  

High Low Significant 
expenditure. 

Repair has been agreed as part of the 
renegotiation of the car park lease with 
the hospital. 

005 Insurance 
claims against 
Trust 

Liability of trust in case of personal 
injury claims. 

Low Low Possible liability 
of Trust in case 
of insurance 
claim. 

Wormwood Scrubs would be covered by 
the Council’s insurance. 

006 Safety of 
Artillery Wall 

Cost of demolition, collapse could 
possibly lead to damage or liability of 
Trust. 

Medium Medium Cost of 
demolition or 
insurance claims. 

The condition of the wall is being 
monitored.  The Council are considering 
demolishing it at no cost to the Trust. 

007 Costs of 
Operating 
Linford Christie 
Stadium 

Contribution by the Trust varies 
according to the trading conditions for 
the Stadium 

High Medium Expenditure 
could be 
significant 

In some years this contribution has been 
small, but it is volatile.  The financial 
performance of the Stadium is monitored 
closely 

 

P
age 38



MANAGERS REPORT 
 

29th January 2020 
 

Report to Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 
 

Report Author: 
Stephen Hollingworth  
 

Contact Details: 
Steve.Hollingworth@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 
1. Executive Summary and Decisions Sought 

 
1.1 The Committee is asked to note all matters in this report.  
 
 
2.      Leisure and Parks Service update: 
 
2.1 Linford Christie Stadium:  
 

 All showers and all handwash basins are now fully operational, following the 
replacement of the boiler.  In addition, a new back up boiler has been delivered on 
09/12/2019 and is being installed. 

 

 Decorations works are now complete, in both the male and female communal 
changing areas and corridors. The main entrance corridor and shutter has also been 
painted.  
 

 Amended Heads of Terms have been issued to KDFC and we are waiting for formal 
agreement from the club.  

 
2.2 Site Management update 
 

 The Grounds Maintenance (GM) Contract expires in April 2021. We have started the 
procurement process to agree a new GM contract. The first stage was to approach 
the market to explore what options are available. The current proposal being drafted 
to cabinet is to: 
 
 Extend the existing contract until 1st February 2022 in order to design a new 

specification and carry out the procurement process. 
 
 Obtain a price and specification for Wormwood Scrubs that can be part of, or 

separate from the overall contract, depending on the advantages offered by the 
Contractor in terms of economies of scale. 

 
 The AEM Works will be developing a Biodiversity management plan for the 

scrubs which will form part of the specification. This is different from traditional 
grounds maintenance, but many contractors offer an appropriate countryside type 
service.  

Page 39

Agenda Item 5

mailto:Steve.Hollingworth@lbhf.gov.uk


 

 Parks Officers met with Kensington Dragons Football Club on 16th October to agree 
the rotation of a proposed pitch within their development plans. This enabled a 
number of trees currently outside the All-weather area to be retained. These trees 
have significant amenity value as well as contributing to habitat suitable for foraging 
bats. 

 

 Funding for a new Cricket strip has been obtained from ECB. This will be an artificial 
wicket and allow cricket to be played at the Scrubs. Precise location to be confirmed. 

 

 A legal agreement has been made with Hammersmith Hospital for the temporary use 
of the disused tennis courts at Linford Christie Stadium. The income will be used to 
refurbish the courts on completion of the hospital extension works. 

 

 An illegal encampment was noted on the Scrubs on Thursday 24th October and, 
following the Councils Traveller protocol, a welfare visit was arranged. The decision 
was made to issue a Section 77 notice, but this had to be signed by legal, which was 
carried out after the weekend on 28th October. The site was vacated sometime 
during the night of the 29th/30th October. Arrangements have now been put in place, 
to have the Section 77 notice delegated to the Director of Environment or their 
deputy, which should speed the process if this happens again. 

 

 The Bin lids and benches were all completed early last year.  A new commemorative 
bench was installed on the eastern side. 

 

 The hospital car park is still intermittently crossed by excess water after heavy rain. 
We attempt to address this in the AEM mitigation works in the coming years. 

 

 Fly-tipping of garden waste continues to be an issue on the Braybrook Street fringes 
and in the copses. Idverde continue to clear these normally following the weekend. 

 

 Idverde also continue to support our volunteering opportunities at the site and the 
use of the Scrubs as a Forest School. 

 
2.3 Wormwood Scrubs Development Manager Update on the Alternative 

Ecological Mitigation (AEM) Proposals 

 

2.3.1 Design Proposals 
 

The appointed consultants, LUC (Land Use Consultants) have developed the 
ecological design proposals and a presentation was made on 9th January 2020 to the 
Design Team. HS2 are to comment on the proposals, following which they will 
present to the WSCT Committee. (See Item later on the Agenda) 
 
A number of issues with the site, including the sites management and the potential 
intervention or development on surrounding sites have been considered to develop 
the masterplan proposals. 
 

Page 40



HS2 funding is for biodiversity improvements, so the masterplan will not be able to 
meet all the issues raised in the consultation process. While it includes new 
interpretation boards, it does not include paths or park infrastructure such as 
benches and bins. Proposals consider all existing entrances, but funding from the 
OPDC, has only been identified to improve one entrance on the east of the site at 
Scrubs Lane. No proposals have been made for surface paths crossing the site in 
line with the Friends previously expressed wish that they should be unpaved. 

 
The main proposals are: 

 The removal of sports pitches from the SINC boundary area. 

 Development of new meadow and woodland areas with a new pond with wetland 

edge. 

 New Avenue to link the east entrance with west of the site. 

 Removal of derelict tarmac areas in west and creation of an Orchard and new 

entrance. 

 New interpretation signage at all entrances. 

 Development of wetland habitat in areas which are currently seasonally wet. 

 Management proposals for existing scrub and meadow areas. 

 Management proposals for existing woodlands. 

 Management proposals for existing hedgerows. 

 Continued treatment of Japanese knotweed and Hogweed. 

 
2.3.2 Community Engagement Strategy 
 

The Community Engagement Strategy is proposed as a three-stage consultation 
process. The first stage comprised of a park user survey and co-design workshops in 
October /November last year, which have helped inform the design proposals so far. 
Some key ideas which emerged and are explored in the current proposals include: 
 

 Access improvements should be to all existing access points not just from Scrubs 

Lane 

 Gaelic football pitches should not be located in the SINC. 

 Current management concentrates only on sports pitches and a biodiversity 

management plan is required. 

 There is great interest in biodiversity in general with a need for signage to help 

educate and inform visitors. 

 Many identified the potential of standing water to improve the site but that wetlands 

should be targeted to specific areas. 

 There was a concern that development around the site might threaten its integrity 

and value. 

The second stage will be a public exhibition of the proposals which will give 
stakeholders an opportunity to give feedback and comments on the design 
proposals for the design team to consider. Two key dates are currently proposed: 

 

 A presentation to the WSCT Committee on 29th January 2020. 

Page 41



 Public exhibition to be held on 11th February (4pm - 8pm) on site at either the 

Linford Christie Centre or Albrighton School.  

 Explore potential for other consultation. 

The third stage will be during the construction phase of the project. Local people will 
be invited to monitor the construction process and assist with tree planting and other 
projects. There may be other opportunities such as opening events or ongoing 
biodiversity surveys in which the community can also remain involved. 

 
2.3.3  Conservation Management Plan 

The Conservation Management Plan (CMP) is not a detailed management and 
maintenance plan but will help to develop one. Its aim to understand, what is of 
significance or value at the Scrubs, who values the different aspects of it and how 
key issues should be addressed so that the heritage of the Scrubs is not lost to 
future generations. The CMP has proposed a vision for the Scrubs and a number of 
objectives that need to be met within the development of the project. 

The CMP has been submitted to HS2 for comment before being made available to 
the WSCT. 

2.4      Re-Routing Stamford Brook Sewer Legal Agreement 
 

Design proposals for the re-routed Stamford brook sewer and the UTX works 
(relocation of service cables) will have an impact on the sites western end. Design 
proposals have progressed, but a detailed design has not yet been proposed. Both 
these proposals have been considered in the current design of the AEM design 
proposals. 

 
2.5  Potential Future Events on Wormwood Scrubs 
 
2.5.1  Approaches have been made to Secret Cinema to build a temporary set on the 

Scrubs in 2021 and put on performances over the summer for a 4-week period. The 
capacity for each show would be approximately 4.000 people. Consultation with 
residents and key stakeholders will commence before final agreement and terms are 
reached. 

 
2.5.2 In addition, approaches have been made to small music festival organisers, attracting 

audiences of approximately 5,000, to consider the Scrubs as a suitable site in the 
summer of 2020 and future years. Should interest be forth coming, consultation will 
again be conducted with residents and key stakeholders before agreement and terms 
reached. 

 
 Committee to Note 

Richard Gill 
3 Community Safety 

 
3.1 There have been no incidents of concern to the Parks Police. Statistics for number of 

incidents and type are as follows: 
 

Page 42



 3.2 Community Safety Incidents 
 

Incident type 
No. of incidents 

2019 

Animals 1 

Anti-social Behaviour 10 

Arrest 0 

Assault 0 

Assistance to Metropolitan Police  0 

Breach of Byelaw 9 

CDZ (controlled drinking zone) Advice 1 

CDZ (controlled drinking zone) Enforcement 0 

Crime (Metropolitan Police) 1 

Crime Report 0 

Dangerous Dog 3 

Dogs 5 

Fire 2 

FPN (fixed penalty notice) 2 

Health and Safety 1 

Homeless 21 

Littering 2 

Lost Child 0 

Other  10 

Possession of Drugs 1 

Property concerning crime 0 

Theft 0 

Vehicle Related 8 

Parks Police 
 

5 Financial Outturn 2018/19 
 
5.1 Subject to final audit, the financial outturn for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 

(“the Trust”) for 2018/19 was a surplus of £226,945. As the Trust’s opening 
unrestricted funds balance was £515,243, the closing unrestricted balance increased 
to £742,188. Therefore, the Trust’s closing funds are £5,742,189, when £5,000,001 
restricted funds are added.  

  
 

Activity
Outturn 

2017/18

Budget 

2018/19

Outturn 

2018/19
Variance Comments

Last 

Reported
Movement

Pay and Display Meters & 

Cashless Parking
(259,674) (281,611) (351,834) (70,223)

The budget was based on the average income over the last 3 years. 

Income was expected to be higher than 2017/18 due to the introduction 

of cashless parking. Actual costs are £70k higher than budgeted.

(345,428) (6,405)

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park 

Licence
(324,619) (336,109) (337,229) (1,120)

The actual income increase in Q4 (from  £83,643 to £86301) was 3% 

rather than the forecasted 1.84% increase.
(337,229) 0

Other income from activities for 

generating funds
(488,002) (171,958) (371,078) (199,120)

Actual income: £301k KAA income (£200k increase due to licence 

extension); £13k 2017/18 KAA portacabin;  and £4k investment income. 
(329,456) (41,622)

Total Income and endowments (1,072,295) (789,678) (1,060,141) (270,463) (1,012,114) (48,027)

Grounds Maintenance 706,909 712,344 719,895 7,551

Actual 20198/19 inflation is 1.63% (0.11 % less than budgeted 

inflation). The contract price is budgeted at £699,994; £19,900 of 

governance costs have been added to this.

722,638 (2,743)

Contribution to Linford Christie 

Stadium
32,330 32,344 32,356 12

Includes £642 of governance costs, not credited to Linford Christie 

Stadium accounts.
32,518 (162)

Other Expenditure 35,093 25,637 80,945 55,308
Actual costs relate to non routine tree works; other ad hoc works and 

£856 of governance costs
25,177 55,768

Total Expenditure 774,332 770,325 833,196 62,871 780,332 52,863

Net (income)/expenditure (297,964) (19,354) (226,945) (207,592) (231,781) 4,836

Previously Reported

Page 43



5.2 The budget for 2018/19 was set with an anticipated surplus of £19,354 to be added 
to the Trust’s reserves. The 2018/19 outturn surplus of £226,945 is £207,592 better 
than the budgeted reserves top up as shown in the separate Statement of Accounts 
report.  

           
                Committee to Note 

Carmen Lomotey 
 

6 Financial Forecast 2019/20 

6.1 The current financial forecast for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) for 
2019/20 is summarised in the table below and is detailed in Annexe A. Financial 
transactions for the financial year-to-date are set out in Annexe B. 

  

 
5.2 The 2019/20 budget for Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust (“the Trust”) was set with 

an anticipated surplus of £15,890 to be added to the Trust’s reserves.  The current 
2019/20 forecast is for a surplus of £155,825, which is £139,935 more than budgeted 
(£172,311 increased income; less £32,376 increased expenditure).   

 
6.3 Subject to audit, the Trust’s 2019/20 opening funds balance is £5,742,189. The latest 

forecast anticipates this being increased to £5,898,014. 

Income 
 

6.4 Total income for 2019/20 is currently forecasted at £1,012,875 against a budget of 
£840,564. 

 
5.5 The Pay and Display and Cashless Parking income forecast of £341,979 is based on 

actual income April to October 2019 (£200,633) and the 2018/19 outturn for 
November 2019 to March 2020 (£141,346). Income fluctuations have stabilised, but it 
is still difficult to predict future income increases, e.g. price increases may result in 

Activity
Outturn 

2017/18

Outturn 

2018/19

2019/20 

Budget

Forecast 

2019/20
Variance Comments

Last 

Reported
Movement

Budget Forecast

Pay and Display Meters & 

Cashless Parking
(259,674) (351,834) (345,428) (341,979) 3,449 2% -3%

The budget was based on the 2018/19 forecast at budget setting. The forecast 

based on actual income to October 2019 and 2018/19 actual.
(351,834) 9,855

Hammersmith Hospital Car Park 

Licence
(324,619) (337,229) (347,795) (349,812) (2,018) -3% 4%

CurrFollowing a rent review the annual Licence fee has increased to 

£363,633.31; £Q1 - Q3 @£86,301.37 and Q4 @ £90,908.33
(347,795) (2,017)

Other income from activities for 

generating funds
(488,002) (371,078) (147,341) (321,083) (173,742) 60% 13%

Current forecast: KAA income to 31st March 2020 £306,460 (Licence 

extension); UKPN rental £3,446; Filming £3,746; Events £2,340; Interest £5,092
(138,341) (182,742)

Total Income and endowments (1,072,295) (1,060,141) (840,564) (1,012,875) (172,311) 59% 14% (837,970) (174,905)

Grounds Maintenance 706,909 719,895 762,360 743,946 (18,414) 6% 3%
Actual Grounds Maintennce cost: £723,534.61 plus apportioned governance 

cost: £20,412.
762,350 (18,404)

Contribution to Linford Christie 

Stadium
32,330 32,356 32,444 78,658 46,214 0% 143%

Fixed annual cost of £31,500; £45,000 one off contribution for repair of boiler 

and related changing room works cost; plus £2,158 governance costs
32,444 46,214

Other Expenditure 35,093 80,945 29,869 34,445 4,576 -63% -57% Estimated ad hoc works and governance costs, included £945 Governance costs 29,869 4,576

Total Expenditure 774,332 833,196 824,674 857,050 32,376 -57% 89% 824,663 32,387

Net (income)/expenditure (297,964) (226,945) (15,890) (155,825) (139,935) 2% 103% (13,307) (142,518)

Previously Reported

Movement 

Between Years

Page 44



decreased usage. The April to October 2019 period was £9,855 less than the 
equivalent 2018/19 period and the overall 2019/20 forecast is £3,449 less than 
budget. 

 
6.6 Hammersmith Hospital car park income has been agreed at £349,812.42 (3 quarter 

@ £86301.37 and 1 quarter @ £90,908.31) for 2019/20. Following a rent review, rent 
has increased from £345,205.48 to £349,812.42 with effect from 25th December 
2019. This is £2,018 more than the budget. 

 
 Other income from activities for generating income: 
 
5.7 Kensington Aldridge Academy (KAA) rental income of £306,460 is £221,597 more 

than the 84,863 budget as the licence has been extended up to 12th July 2020. This 
increase includes a monthly payment increase of £750 (from £25,000 to £25,750). 
This has, however, had an impact on other income. 

 
6.8 Reinstatement of Filming and Events income to levels prior to KAA occupation was 

expected to be phased from September 2019 as customers returned from alternative 
sites. However, continued KAA occupation has reduced the forecast from £47,340 to 
£6,086. 

 
5.9 Annual rental from UKPN for occupation is £3,446 for the next seven years 

commencing March 2019. Investment income is forecasted at £5,092. 
 
5.10 Income budgets and forecasts for 2019/20 shown above do not include the HS2 

project transactions as all costs are to be fully recovered from HS2 Ltd. The prior 
year outturns and Annual Statement of Accounts, however, do include accrued 
income for the project. 

 
Expenditure 
 

5.11 Total expenditure for 2019/20 is currently forecasted at £857,050 against a £824,674 
budget. 

 
5.12 Price indices (Derv Fuel, Plant & Road Vehicles, and GLPC pay scales) were used to 

calculate the 5.74% contractual uplift on the grounds maintenance contract. Grounds 
maintenance is currently forecasted at £743,191 (£723,534.61 actual grounds 
maintenance recharge plus £20,399 governance costs). This forecast is £18,427 less 
than the £762,360 budget as the actual inflation calculation was only 3.36%. 

 
5.13 The Trust’s fixed contribution to Linford Christie Stadium remains fixed at £31,500. A 

one-off contribution to the stadium is also forecasted (£45,000) as the Trust has 
agreed to fund the boiler related works in the stadium’s changing rooms. The total 
forecast of 78,657includes £2,157 apportioned governance costs. 

 
5.14   Other expenditure is driven by non-routine health and safety related maintenance. 

Every effort is being made to keep controllable costs to a minimum. The current 
forecast is £34,444, including governance costs. 

 
 

Page 45



 
7 Financial Budget 2020/21 
 
6.1 The budget for 2020/21 will be reported in the next quarterly Manager’s Report. 
 

 
Committee to Approve 

Carmen Lomotey 
 

 
8 Legal Comments 

2.1. There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 2000 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 

No. 
 

Description of 
Background Papers 

Name/Ext  of holder of 
file/copy 

Department/ 
Location 

1. None   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



 
Annexe A 

 Current Financial Forecast 

Page 47



             

                             
                                                                                                                                    

Income and Expenditure WSCT HS2
2019/20 

Forecast
2018/19 Actual

£ £ £ £

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies

Income from Charitable activities:

     Pay and Display Parking Meters (341,979) 0 (341,979) (351,834)

     Hammersmith Hospital Car Park Licence (349,812) 0 (349,812) (337,229)

0

Other trading activities (315,991) 0 (315,991) (367,332)

Income from Investments (5,092) (5,092) (3,747)

Other Income 0

Total Income and endowments (1,012,875) 0 (1,012,875) (1,060,142)

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 0 0

Charitable activities:

     Contribution to Linford Christie Stadium 78,658 78,658 32,356

     Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 29,304 29,304 25,592

     Routine Grounds Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs 743,946 743,946 719,895

0

Other expenditure 5,141 0 5,141 55,353

Total Expenditure 857,050 0 857,050 833,197

Net gains/(losses) on investments

Net (income)/expenditure (155,825) 0 (155,825) (226,945)

Reconciliation of Funds

Total funds brought forward (5,742,189) 0 (5,742,189) (5,515,244)

Total funds carried forward (5,898,014) 0 (5,898,014) (5,742,189)

All income was unrestricted.

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for Year ended 31 March 2020

Page 48



                                                                                                       ANNEXE B        

 

179,569.42             

Activity Comments Amount £

Amount

£

Routine Grounds Maintenance WSCT - Fixed Ground Maintenance 2019/20 723,534.61

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 300.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 250.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 4,500.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 150.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 600.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 600.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 1,350.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 150.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Advanced Tree Services Limited 130.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Scott Evans 1,710.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Bell Decorating & Building Ltd 510.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 2,710.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 474.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 1,640.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 170.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 340.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 310.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 460.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Indigo Lodge Limited 170.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Idverde Ltd (6,485.68)

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Idverde Ltd 6,485.68

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Idverde Ltd - Tree works 694.60

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Red Squirrel Tree Surgery Ltd 60.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Red Squirrel Tree Surgery Ltd 5,490.00

Supplies & Services Misposted water charges 891.63

Supplies & Services Misposted water charges (891.63)

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn 88.00

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn 473.00

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn 35.00

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn (596.00)

Other trading activities Unauthorised Traveller encampment 300.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Legal fees 21.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 84.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 63.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 343.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 306.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 1,183.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 469.00

Governance Costs Legal fees 6.00

Governance Costs - Accrual Audit fee (9,900.00)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME APRIL 2019 (27,470.00)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME MAY 2019 (29,325.92)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME JUNE 2019 (28,208.96)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME JULY 2019 (30,077.63)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME AUGUST 2019 (26,128.62)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME SEPTEMBER 2019 (27,696.71)

Pay & Display Parking Meters and pay by phone WORMWOOD SCRUBS INCOME OCTOBER 2019 (31,724.71)

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn (97.00)

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn (150.00)

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn (526.00)

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn (200.00)

Other trading activities Donated Bench Joanna Blackburn (97.00)

Other trading activities Filming September 2019 (270.65)

Other trading activities Filming June 2019 (150.00)

Other trading activities Filming June 2019 (150.00)

Other trading activities Filming July 2019 (945.84)

Other trading activities Filming September 2019 (337.60)

Other trading activities Filming September 2019 (945.85)

Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Transactions at Q3 2019/20 

Page 49



 

Activity Comments Amount £

Amount

£

Other trading activities 2019/20 Hospital Car Park Q1 (86,301.37)

Other trading activities 2019/20 Hospital Car Park Q2 (86,301.37)

Other trading activities 2019/20 Hospital Car Park Q3 (86,301.37)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - APRIL 2019 (25,000.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - MAY 2019 (25,000.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - JUNE 2019 (25,000.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - JULY 2019 (25,000.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - AUGUST 2019 (25,000.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - RENT SHORTFALL - 13TH JULY TO 31ST JULY 2019 (459.68)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - RENT SHORTFALL - AUGUST 2019 (750.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - SEPTEMBER 2019 (25,750.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - OCTOBER 2019 (25,750.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - NOVEMBER 2019 (25,750.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - DECEMBER 2019 (25,750.00)

Other trading activities Kensington Aldrige Academy - JANUARY 2020 (25,750.00)

Income from Investments Park Lodge Rental Income April - June 2019 (273.00)

Income from Investments Park Lodge Rental Income - Oct _ dec 2019 (273.00)

Income from Investments Park Lodge Rental Income (273.00)

Other trading activities - Accrual UKPN 23,659.39

Other trading activities UKPN (3,446.00)

Other trading activities - Accrual UKPN (23,659.39)

Subtotal Wormwood Scrubs 16,546.93

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 3,697.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 3,697.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 3,697.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 3,697.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 3,697.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 3,697.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 (1,709.82)

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 (5,685.68)

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 411.07

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 411.07

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 411.07

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 411.07

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 411.07

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 411.07

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 (251.87)

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 (570.27)

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 565.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 565.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 565.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 565.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 565.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 565.75

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 120.44

Governance costs Wormwood Scrubs Officer - HS2 (1,251.94)

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Japanese Knotweed Eradication Ltd 1,100.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Japanese Knotweed Eradication Ltd 600.00

Non Routine Maintenance of Wormwood Scrubs Japanese Knotweed Eradication Ltd 1,100.00

Other tr+A118:A130ading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 1,303.70

Other trading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 8,317.50

Page 50



 

Activity Comments Amount £

Amount

£

Other trading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 18,377.75

Other trading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 10,230.00

Other trading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 11,263.50

Other trading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 8,115.00

Other trading activities Land Use Consultants Limited 8,796.25

Other trading activities Premier Surveys Ltd 15,910.00

Other trading activities Pick Everard 19,885.00

Other trading activities Pick Everard 5,653.00

Other trading activities Pick Everard 5,653.00

Other trading activities Ben Rose 5,460.00

Other trading activities London Wildlife Ltd 1,125.00

Governance costs Legal fees 150.00

Governance costs Legal fees 480.00

Governance costs Legal fees 44.00

Governance costs Legal fees 121.00

Governance costs Legal fees 121.00

Governance costs Legal fees (121.00)

Governance costs Legal fees 33.00

Governance costs Legal fees 110.00

Governance costs Legal fees 88.00

Governance costs Legal fees 462.00

Other trading activities Legal fees 50.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (9,057.60)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (43,432.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (50.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (11,093.25)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 350.68

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 2,217.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 2,354.24

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 11,567.84

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 14,550.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 52,489.60

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (8,085.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (350.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (1,300.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (1,300.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (9,057.60)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (43,432.00)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (3,697.75)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (3,697.75)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited (3,697.75)

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 8,035.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 350.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 1,300.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 1,300.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 9,057.60

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 43,432.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 50.00

Other trading activities Reimbursement from HS2 Limited 11,093.25

Total HS2 Project 163,022.49

Overall Total 179,569.42

Page 51



UPDATE ON BUSINESS CASE PROCESS - APPOINTMENT OF 
CONSULTANTS 

 

Report to Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 
 

Report Author:  
Dave Burns, Advisor to the Trust 
 

Contact Details: 
E-mail: dave.burns@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Decisions Sought 
 
1.1 The Committee is asked to note this report. 
 
2.       Appointment of Consultants 
 
2.1 The Committee approved the following at the June 26th 2019 meeting, 

subject to approval of the final specification: 
 

- Approves the Procurement Strategy in Appendix 2 for the appointment of 
multi-disciplinary advisors for the Trust, to consider the consultation 
responses in more detail, to develop a business case, and to complete 
any necessary surveys, technical and planning work that may be 
required. 

 
- Delegates the award of contracts for multi-disciplinary advisors as set out 

in the Procurement Strategy in Appendix 2 to the Council's Assistant 
Director of Growth acting on behalf of the Trust in consultation with the 
Chair of the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee subject to the 
Council's agreement to provide sufficient funding to the Trust.  

 
- Delegates authority to the Council's Assistant Director of Growth acting 

on behalf of the Trust to develop an outline business case for the different 
options, on the basis that regular updates and reports are provided to the 
Trust Committee.  

 
 

2.2 The Council’s cabinet on July 1st 2019 approved £397,000 of CIL funding to 
be made available to the Trust for completion of the Business Case. 

 
2.3 A specification and brief were prepared and circulated to committee 

members, and comments were received and incorporated into the brief and 
specification. The final version was approved by the Chair of the Trust 
Committee in October 2019. 

 
2.4 A tender process was completed in November and tenders were returned 

and evaluated in December. Four tenders were returned, and a contract has 
been awarded to In Partnership With Limited (subject to completion of 
contract), a specialist sports and leisure business case consultancy 
company.  

 
3.      Next Steps 
 
3.1 The consultant is currently mobilising and reviewing the information that has 

been produced to date. Their tasks as set out in the brief are summarised as: 
Page 52

Agenda Item 6

mailto:dave.burns@lbhf.gov.uk


 Complete analysis of the consultation responses 

 Review existing strategic outline business case 

 Complete stakeholder meetings 

 Complete options analysis and appraisal 

 Produce outline business case report. 

3.2 They will produce an interim report for the March 24th committee meeting. 
The consultants would like to meet with committee members and will be in 
touch via council officers to arrange meetings. 

  
 
 
 

Page 53



 
 

REPORT OF THE KENSINGTON DRAGONS FOOTBALL CLUB PROPOSALS -TO 
BUILD A NEW HYBRID GRASS PITCH AND REFURBISH THE ALL-WEATHER 

PITCHES AT WORMWOOD SCRUBS 

 
 

29th January 2020 
 

Report to Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee 
 

Report Author: 
Nigel Brown, Advisor to the Trust 
 

Contact Details: 
E-mail: nigel.brown@lbhf.gov.uk 
 

 
 

1.      EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.1. The report summarises the options and possible next steps available to the 

Trust in relation to the proposals outlined by Kensington Dragons Football 
Club (KDFC) to provide improved grass pitches adjacent to Linford Christie 
Stadium (LCS) as well a new hybrid pitch next to Linford Christie Stadium 
(LCS). 

 
1.2. At the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee (WSCTC) meeting on 

26th June 2019, initial KDFC proposals were outlined and the Trust requested 
Council officers (on the Trust's behalf) to secure more detailed heads of 
terms. This report sets out further details obtained from KDFC and a draft 
Heads of Terms is appended as Appendix A.  

 
1.3. At the last WSCTC, KDFC asked the Council to consider making a financial 

contribution to KDFC project. Please note this was unintentionally incorrectly 
recorded and it was intended the Trust were being asked to consider a 
financial contribution by KDFC. This report provides information regarding the 
funding of the KDFC project and the options available to the Trust. 
 

1.4. In line with their remit to obtain further detail on the proposals, Council officers 
(on behalf of the Trust) have also sought specialist legal advice on the charity 
law implications of the proposals. It has been advised that Charity 
Commission consent/approval will need to be sought in relation to these 
proposals. This report sets out details of the nest steps required below.  

 
2. NEXT STEPS 
 

The Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Committee (WSCTC) are asked to 
consider:  

 
2.1. whether it wishes, in principle, to proceed with the KDFC Project as outlined 

as option 3 in paragraph 7, considering the charity law implications;  
 

Page 54

Agenda Item 8

mailto:nigel.brown@lbhf.gov.uk


2.2. subject to approval of the Trust in paragraph 2,1, to request Council officers 
on behalf of the Trust can approach the Charity Commission to seek the 
necessary consents and authorities as outlined in paragraph 4.2; 
 

2.3. subject to approval of paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2, requesting Council officers 
(Assistant Director of Growth and Head of Asset Strategy & Property Portfolio) 
to act on behalf of the Trust to further progress the heads of terms as outlined 
in the draft version contained in appendix A; and 
 

2.4. subject to approval of paragraph 2.1 and 2.2 and full due diligence outlined in 
paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6, to agree the principle of a financial contribution in the 
project up to £350,000 as outlined under Option 3 in paragraph 7 (subject to 
full due diligence being undertaken in paragraphs 2.5 and 2.6). 
 

2.5 subject to approval of paragraph 2.1 and 2.2, for Council officers on behalf of 
the Trust to seek a detailed business case from KDFC; KDFC to provide full 
financial information on funding for the project and full detailed specification of 
the works to be undertaken in respect of the project. 
 

2.6.1 subject to approval of paragraph 2.1 and 2.2, decide how it would like to 
proceed with local resident consultation for proposed KDFC project.   
 
 

3. KDFC PROPOSAL  
 

3.1. KDFC commissioned proposals to upgrade existing pitches adjacent to 
Linford Christie Stadium (LCS) as well as providing a new hybrid all weather 
pitch. The preliminary cost plan for all the works are in the region of £1.5 
million. KDFC have undertaken preliminary surveys, at no cost to the Trust. 
KDFC will need to undertake further due diligence and bear costs on 
preparing a full specification of works, provide a detailed financial business 
case including funding profiling. Before KDFC embark on further expense, 
they seek WSCTC approval to the draft heads of terms (see appendix A) and 
agree to next steps. 
  

3.2. KDFC have provided more details of their funding since June 2019. They 
have secured £1 million funding but haven’t provided full details of this to 
date. This still leaves a shortfall which would need to be met by further KDFC 
fundraising, grant applications and other contributions. In order to produce a 
funding plan KDFC have requested the Trust confirm their contribution and 
advised they seek a maximum contribution of £350,000.  KDFC would need to 
outline their proposals for the additional funds that have not been successfully 
secured for the project.  
 

3.3. It is proposed the Trust would grant, for a peppercorn, a 25-year lease of the 
new hybrid pitch (as shown red on the attached plan in appendix B) and there 
would be wider community and sports access to the pitch as outlined in the 
heads of terms at appendix A. The Trust would be obliged to update, refurbish 
and repair all the other pitches as outlined in green on the plan (appendix B)  

 

Page 55



4. CHARITY LAW CONSIDERATIONS 
  

4.1. Due to the nature of these proposals, there are 2 factors which mean that the 
Trust cannot simply take a decision to proceed with the project of its own 
volition: the fact that the land is designated land and the lease is for 25 years 
mean that specific procedures set out in the Charities Act 2011 must be 
complied with.  

 
4.1.1. Designated land  

 
4.1.1.1. As the Scrubs is designated land (land which is required by the 

Trust’s governing document to be used for particular purposes i.e. 
the exercise and recreation of the of inhabitants of Hammersmith 
and Fulham), the Charity Commission would usually be required to 
make a Scheme if the disposal is for over 2 years and the land is not 
being replaced.  
 

4.1.1.2. However, where the proportion of the land being disposed of is 
so small that it doesn’t affect the charity’s ability to further its 
purposes (as appears to be the case here) it is likely that the charity 
can still dispose of the land without the need for a scheme) subject 
to obtaining a surveyors’ report (if relevant – see below).  

 
4.1.1.3. Regardless of whether a Scheme is required, where designated 

land is being disposed of and not replaced, the disposal must be 
advertised by public notice for at least a month. A charity can apply 
to the Charity Commission for a waiver of this requirement which will 
be at the Charity Commission’s discretion. While the disposal of a 
small proportion of designated land is an example of situation where 
the requirement might be waived, each application is decided on its 
own merits. It should be noted that the Charity Commission may 
take up to a month to respond to the waiver request.  
 

4.1.2. Surveyors Report 
 

4.1.2.1. In addition to the above, the Trust would not be able to proceed 
with the lease without the consent of the Charity Commission 
unless: 
 

4.1.2.1.1.  it complies with the provisions of s117 (b) (i) of the Charities 
Act 2011 which requires the Trust to obtain a surveyor report to 
confirm that the terms of the lease are the best that could 
reasonably be obtained; or 
 

4.1.2.1.2. it is disposing of the land to a charity with similar objects. 
 

4.1.3. Although the Kensington Dragons are also a registered charity and 
their activities appear to football related, their formal charitable objects 
are very wide:  
 

Page 56



"The Charity's objects are to promote all purposes recognized as 
charitable under the laws of England and Wales and (without 
limitation):  
1. To promote community participation of, primarily, children and young 
people regardless of race, sex, creed, financial means or social and 
economic circumstances in healthy recreation in particular by the 
provision of facilities for the playing of association football ("football") 
and other sports capable of improving health ("facilities" means any of 
land, buildings, equipment and organizing sporting activities); and 
2. To advance the education of children and young people so that they 
might grow to maturity as individuals, become responsible members of 
society and their conditions of life may be improved." 

 
4.1.4. On this basis, they are not the same as or similar to the Trust’s objects 

and it is unlikely that the Trust would be exempt from the requirement to 
obtain a surveyors report to confirm that it had obtained best value for the 
lease. Again, the Charity Commission may waive this requirement where 
the disposal is to another charity with wider objects in certain 
circumstances, but this will be on a case by case basis. 

 
4.2. It is suggested that if WSCTC are minded to continue exploring the KDFC 

project it has 2 options: 
 

4.2.1. consider instructing the Council to contact the Charity Commission on 
the Trust’s behalf to confirm its intention to dispose of a small proportion 
of the designated land and comply with the Charities Act 2011 
requirements regarding public notice of designated land and obtaining a 
surveyor’s report; or  
 

4.2.2. consider instructing the Council to contact the Charity Commission to 
set out the plans in full and establish if they would be minded to grant a 
waiver of the requirement to advertise the disposal of the designated land 
and for the requirement to obtain a surveyors report on the basis that the 
disposal is to another charity carrying out similar activities (albeit their 
objects are wider) and the proposed disposal is by a time limited lease 
with a break clause.  

 
5. OTHER RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS  

 
The Trust has an obligation to ‘Barclays spaces for sport programme’, which 
provided funding for the existing all-weather pitches. The agreement includes a 
clause to keep the facilities in ‘good repair and condition’ until at least 2026. 
Currently the playing surface needs refurbishment, but no budget has been identified 
for this. WSCTC requested an estimate from Council officers and the estimated cost 
of the works is in excess of £100,000. 

 
5.1. The Trust has asked the Council’s leisure officers for their views on proposal 

and some were set out in the Managers' report to the WSCTC in June 2019. 
The proposal will mean fewer all-weather pitches than currently, but a full-
sized Hockey pitch has been allowed for and one five a side court will be 

Page 57



suitable for netball. The baseball cage will have to be relocated and a 
compromise may have to be reached between a suitable surface for 
competitive Hockey and hiring out the pitches for football and other sports. 
The proposal has been revised to ensure no impact on the operation of the 
Idverde Grounds maintenance yard. There may be localised disruption to park 
users and residents during construction. The proposals would not require 
planning permission and the Council’s planning officer has issued a certificate 
of lawfulness and secured advice to protect the trees to the eastern part of the 
site. 
 

5.2. WSCTC previously considered (at its March 2019 and June 2019 meetings) 
the wider outcomes of the LCS public consultation. A report is being tabled at 
WSCTC on 29 January 2020 to provide an update on the business case work.  
 

6. POTENTIAL RISKS  
 

6.1. There are some crucial elements of the heads of terms that may have 
potential financial impact to the Trust following public consultation about LCS 
and considered by the Trust in March and June 2019. If the Trust did agree to 
KDFC proposals then this may affect wider LCS proposals. The draft heads of 
terms have been prepared so if future LCS proposals did progress then this 
may mean the sports facilities as outlined in the plan (appendix B) are 
affected.  
 

6.2. If LCS proposals did come forward and the footprint covered the current 
sports pitches and the new hybrid pitch (as outlined edged green) in appendix 
B, then the draft heads of terms allow the lease to be terminated.  
 

6.3. Firstly, the Trust would seek to re-provide the sports facilities at its cost. The 
total cost could be circa £1.5 million. In wider LCS proposals these provisions 
may be re-provided. 
 

6.4. Secondly, if WSCTC decided not to re-provide these facilities, as outlined in 
paragraph 6.3 above, then a suggested compensation mechanism has been 
outlined. The level of compensation payable by the Trust to KDCC would be 
based on the total investment made by KDFC (net of any Trust financial 
contribution) and this is reduced by 4% per annum over the 25-year period 
(e.g. lease length).  
 

6.5. The table below shows the potential compensation/re-payment paid to KDFC 
if wider LCS proposals did come forward and all the facilities within the green 
line in plan 1 (appendix B) could not be re-provided. This would be the result 
of the termination of the lease (25 years proposed) if any wider development 
at LCS were to occur.  
 

6.6.  

If the 25-year lease was 
terminated (indicative 
dates shown for 
calculation purposes 

Percentage of total 
investment to be repaid 
by the Trust to KDFC 
 

Financial sum to be re-
paid (maximum) by 
Trust to KDFC 

Page 58



only depending on when 
lease terminated) 

Assumed KDFC 
investment £1.2 million 

Year 4 84% £1,008,000 

Year 10 60% £720,000 

Year 20 20% £244,000 

 
 
 
7.  ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS  

 
7.1. The Trust has various options, and these are outlined below.  

 
7.1.1. OPTION 1: A do-nothing approach would mean a continued patching 

of the carpet surfacing. This would not improve facilities and there is an 
obligation by the Trust to keep the facilities in ‘good repair and condition’ 
until at least 2026 following the previous funding. The all-weather pitch 
carpet has reached the end of its life expectancy. There is a likelihood 
the pitches may have to close as they are not fit for purpose.  

7.1.2. OPTION 2: The Trust could consider undertaking all the works 
proposed by KDFC itself and the initial estimates of this are circa £1.5 
million. This would require seek the Trust to secure external funding or 
other sources to completely fund the project. The Trust do not have 
unreserved funds to fund this project. 
 

7.1.3. OPTION 3: The KDFC proposal secures significant capital investment 
and improves provision of facilities, including a hybrid pitch to allow more 
senior league football for junior and senior teams. This option also builds 
on wider sports use of facilities ahead of a potential long-term solution for 
LCS. The Trust are being requested to provide funds of up to £350,000 
to the project. 

 
 

 
8. CONSULTATION 

 
8.1. No formal consultation has been undertaken to date, but proposals have been 

discussed at previous WSCTC meetings. 
 

 
8.2. KDFC have consulted informally but there has been no formal local resident 

consultation by the Trust.   
 
 

9.       LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Please refer to the Charity law implications set out above and these 
comments have been provided by Bevan Brittan. 

 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

Page 59



 
9.1 Council implications/comments on the Trust reserves. 

 
As reported separately in the Trust’s Statement of Accounts, the unaudited 
2018/19 accounts state that the Trust’s closing unrestricted funds total 
£742,189. Historically Trust’s has operated with an annual deficit, given 
normal operations as shown in the table below: 

 

 
 
9.2     Exceptional income was in 2017/18 and 2018/19. This includes a lump sum 

payment from UK Power Networks for use of the Scrubs and from the 
Kensington Aldridge Academy’s (KAA) occupation of the temporary. Options 
for achievement of an annual break-even financial position once exceptional 
income from KAA ends are largely in the planning stage at present. KAA’s 
current lease expires in July 2020.  At the next Trust meeting, a decision will 
be considered if there if a further lease extension to KAA will be considered 
from July 2020 to July 2021.  

 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN PREPARING THIS REPORT 

 
Managers’ report – WSTCC June 2019  

 
LIST OF APPENDICES - OPEN 
 
APPENDIX A - Heads of terms 
 
APPENDIX B - Plan 
 

Page 60



 
 

COMMERCIAL LEASE HEADS OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 

SUBJECT TO CONTRACT & WITHOUT PREJUDICE 
Please note the heads of terms will be agreed alongside an 

agreement for lease heads of terms 
 

Date: 22 January 2020 
 

1.  Demised premises: The land forming part of the Linford Christie 
Stadium site as outlined in red on the attached 
draft KDFC lease and works plan comprising the 
New Grass Football pitch and circulation areas. 
 

2.  Landlord: The Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough 
of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

3.  Tenant: Kensington Dragons Football Club (a company 
limited by guarantee with company number 
07720188 and charity registration number 
1144887) or such organisation which succeeds it – 
change of organisation permitted only with the 
landlord’s prior consent. 
 

4.  Guarantor: None 
 

5.  Lease term: 25 years from completion of the works.  
 

6.  Rent: One peppercorn 
 

7.  Rent free period: N/A 
 

8.  Break clause: The landlord will have the option to break the 
lease at any time for the purpose of the wider 
redevelopment of the current stadium (if such 
redevelopment is to include the subject demise) 
upon giving the tenant prior written notice of 
either; (a) a period of no less than six months’; or 
(b) until the end of the current or upcoming 
Football season at the time that notice is served 
(whichever is longer), and subject to the landlord 
providing either an equivalent pitch elsewhere 
within Wormwood Scrubs, or repaying the costs 
of creating the demised premises calculated at 4% 
of the original cost of the agreed works (minus 
any amount that the Wormwood Scrubs 

Page 61



 
 

Charitable Trust  may contribute – please see 
clause 9 below),  multiplied by the remaining 
number of years of the lease remaining at the 
time the landlord’s option is exercised. 
 

9.  WSCT funding: Unless the Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust 
confirm the provision and amount of funding and 
outline the method of payment towards the 
proposed works (to be agreed between the 
parties), then the provision of such funding as a 
condition of the licence for works or lease being 
agreed will remain unconfirmed. 
 

10.  Repairing & maintenance 
obligations: 

The tenant is to keep and maintain the demised 
premises (including all fixtures and additions 
thereto) in good repair and condition. 
 

11.  Permitted use: 
 
 

All use within Class D2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987. The tenant is 
not to use any part of the demised premises other 
than for use in connection with activities carried 
out by Kensington Dragons Football Club. 

12.  Wider community use: The landlord shall have use of the demised 
premises for school sports provision to hold two 
1-day tournaments during July and August each 
year including at weekends.  
 
To hold semi-final and final matches of school 
competitions organised by the Landlord over two 
full days at times to be agreed with the Tenant 
providing always that such use is compatible with 
and does not deteriorate from the standard 
required for National League football as set out in 
the specification (to be provided by the tenant 
and appended to the lease). Any income for such 
use to be retained by the landlord.   
 

13.  Rates & outgoings: The tenant will be responsible for rates and all 
other outgoings in respect of the demised 
premises. The outgoings to be directly metered or 
apportioned on an agreed basis. 
 

14.  Alterations/Additions: Tenant must not carry out any alteration or 
addition whatsoever either externally or internally 
to the premises without the prior consent of the 

Page 62



 
 

landlord having been obtained. The Landlord not 
to unreasonably withhold consent for future 
works related to the activities of the tenant 
providing always that such works comply with all 
statutory requirements.  
 

15.  Security of tenure 
(inside/outside 1954 Act Part 
II): 

The terms of the lease will be excluded from the 
security of tenure provisions of the Landlord & 
Tenant Act 1954, sections 25-28. 
 

16.  Service charges: A mechanism to apportion utility costs will be 
agreed between the parties and included within 
the Agreed Works Licence once details are 
finalised. 
 

17.  Insurance: The landlord will insure the building. However, the 
tenant is to be responsible for effecting insurance 
for its own fixtures and fittings and taking out 
third party and public liability insurance.  
 

18.  Indemnity:  The tenant will indemnify and keep indemnified 
the landlord against any claim arising out of the 
tenants’ use and occupation of the property. 
 

19.  Alienation: The tenant may not assign the whole or any part 
of the demised premises without the landlord’s 
prior consent. 
 

20.  Fees: Each party is to bear their own costs. 
 

21.  Agreed works: After the signing of the Agreement to Lease, the 
Tenant shall agree with the Landlord the start 
date of the Agreed Works. The Landlord shall not 
unreasonably delay the start date which in any 
event shall not be later than 12 months from the 
signing of the Agreement to Lease. The Landlord is 
to grant the tenant a one-year licence to carry out 
works within the area outlined in green on the 
attached draft KDFC lease and works plan. The 
specification of works will need to be agreed 
within a separate agreement for lease to include 
provision for required consents and long stop 
dates. The works will be part of the construction 
contract at the outset to upgrade and provide the 
new sports pitches indicated on the above-
mentioned plan. Terms of the licence to be 
agreed. 

Page 63



 
 

 
All works are to be in compliance with any specific 
instructions issued by the Planning Authority. 
 

22.  Re-Entry: The landlord reserves the right to re-enter the 
premises if; any sums due are at any time in 
arrears and unpaid and; the tenant’s failure to 
observe and perform any of the covenant 
obligations and regulations in the lease providing 
always that the Landlord has provided notice of 
the failure and the Tenant has not remedied the 
failure with 28 days or such other period that is 
reasonable in the circumstances. 
 

23.  Statutory requirements: The tenant will comply (at its own cost) with the 
requirements of any legislation and any other 
obligations imposed by law or by any byelaws, 
orders or regulations applicable to the demised 
Property. 
 

24.  Consents: To be confirmed. If any consents are required, 
these will be at the tenant’s cost and no financial 
costs will be borne by the landlord. 
 

25.  Other: Permitted operating hours to be confirmed and 
will be subject to; consultation with the 
Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust; and any 
necessary consents relating to artificial lighting if 
required. The Permitted operating Hours to be no 
less than the normal operating hours of the 
existing artificial pitches at LCS existing at the time 
of signing this agreement. 
 
The tenant is to provide the landlord with the final 
specification and itemized costs of the agreed 
works, along with a business case to confirm that 
full funding for the proposed scheme is available 
prior to any property legal agreements being 
entered into. 
 

 

 
Signed for and on behalf of The Mayor and Burgesses of the London Borough of 
Hammersmith & Fulham 
 
Sign :  …………………………………………………………………………………… 
 

Page 64



 
 

Print :  …………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Date :  …………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
 
Signed for and on behalf of Kensington Dragons Football Club 
 
Sign :  …………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Print :  …………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
Date :  …………………………………………………………………………………… 

Page 65



P
age 66


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	4 Wormwood Scrubs Charitable Trust Statement of Accounts 2018/19
	Appendix A & D Annual Report 2018-19 Draft

	5 Manager's Report
	6 Regeneration Manager Update and Appointment of Consultants for Stadium Feasibility
	8 Funding towards Kensington Dragons Development
	Revision to Agreed HoTs - KDFC
	LCS Lease Plan 21.1.20


